
THE CORPORATION OF THE TOWNSHIP OF PUSLINCH 
2016 COUNCIL MEETING 

A G E N D A 

DATE:  Wednesday, April 20, 2016 
CLOSED MEETING:     6:15 P.M.  
REGULAR MEETING:  7:00 P.M. 

≠ Denotes resolution prepared 

1. Call the Meeting to Order

2. Disclosure of Pecuniary Interest & the General Nature Thereof.

3. Adoption and Receipt of Minutes of the Previous Meeting.≠

(a) Special Council Meeting – March 31, 2016
(b) Council Meeting –April 6, 2016
(c) Closed Council Meeting – April 6, 2016

4. Business Arising Out of the Minutes.

5. PUBLIC MEETINGS

1. 2016 Housekeeping Amendment to Zoning By-Law 19/85

*note this Public Open House will be held on Thursday, April 21, 2016 at
7:00 p.m. at the Municipal Complex – 7404 Wellington Rd. 34 

(a) Notice of Open House 

(b) Report- County of Wellington Planning Department – 2016 Housekeeping 
Amendment to Zoning By-Law 19/85 - Township wide Zoning By-Law 
Amendment dated February 18, 2016.   

6. COMMUNICATIONS

1. Puslinch Baseball Diamonds

(a) Correspondence from Mr. James Seeley regarding Puslinch Ball Diamonds
dated March 30, 2016.  ≠ 



THE CORPORATION OF THE TOWNSHIP OF PUSLINCH 
April 20, 2016 MEETING 

P a g e  | 2 

2. Request for Signage -  Watson Rd. South – Wellington Rd. 34 & Hume Rd.

(a) Correspondence from Diane Greene regarding cyclists on Watson Rd. dated
March 31, 2016.≠  

3. Request to Waive Fees/Use of Facilities

(a) Correspondence from Optimist Club of Puslinch regarding use of Puslinch
Community Centre on Saturday, October 22, 2016 for an Adult Spelling bee 
dated April 11, 2016.≠ 

(b) Correspondence from Aberfoyle Agricultural Society regarding use of Optimist 
Recreation Centre Rink Pad on Friday, September 9, 2016.  

4. Nestle Waters Canada

(a) Correspondence from Nestle Waters Canada regarding Aberfoyle Permit to
Take Water Renewal Application dated April 12, 2016. 

5. Burn Permit

(a) Correspondence from Paul Leombruni dated April 12, 2016

6. Intergovernmental Affairs ≠

(a) Various correspondence for review.

7. DELEGATIONS / PRESENTATIONS ≠

7:05 p.m. – Ms. Daina Makinson, Puslinch Recreation Committee Member and
Mr. Neil Arsenault, Puslinch Library Branch Supervisor regarding 
presentation and future location of Township of Puslinch Trophy 
Book.   

7:15 p.m. – Mr. Gary Will - Presentation – 2016 Puslinch Volunteer of the Year 
Award. 

7:35 p.m. -  Ms. Sally Slumskie, Partner and Mr. Thomas DiCarlo, Manager at 
BDO Canada LLP regarding 2015 Township of Puslinch Financial 
Statements*  See Agenda Items 8.2(a)  



THE CORPORATION OF THE TOWNSHIP OF PUSLINCH 
April 20, 2016 MEETING 

  
 

P a g e  | 3 
 

7:50 p.m.  Mr. Vince Klimkosz regarding Agricultural Society Fall Fair request to 
use Optimist Centre Rink Pad on Friday, September 9, 2016 and 
Optimist Club of Puslinch Adult Spelling Bee on Saturday, October 
22, 2016.  See Agenda Items 6.3(a)(b) 

 
8. REPORTS  

1. Puslinch Fire and Rescue Services  
 

(a) Puslinch Fire and Rescue Services Monthly Report – March, 2016 ≠    
 

2. Finance Department  
 

(a) BDO Canada LLP Final Report to Members of Council dated April 20, 2016 and  
The Corporation of  the Township of Puslinch Draft Financial Statements for the 
year ended December 31, 2016. ≠ 
 

(b) Report FIN-2016-008 – 2016 First Quarter Financial Summary  
* to be distributed under separate cover on Monday, April 25, 2016.  

3. Administration Department   
 

(a) Report – Wellington Source Water Protection –Kyle Davis, Risk Management 
Official regarding Source Protection Contract Position dated April 1, 2016. ≠  

4. Planning and Building  
 

(a) Report – County of Wellington Planning Department – Amending By-Law 
D14/COL (Coles Label It!) Zoning By-Law Amendment - 6691 Ellis Road (Part 
Lot 8, Concession 2), Puslinch.≠ 
 

(b) Chief Building Official Report – March 2016.≠ 
 

5. Roads & Parks Department 
 

None.  
  



THE CORPORATION OF THE TOWNSHIP OF PUSLINCH 
April 20, 2016 MEETING 

  
 

P a g e  | 4 
 

 
6. Recreation Department  

 
None.   

7. Mayor’s Updates  
 

(a) The Treatment of Confidential Information. 
 

9. NOTICES OF MOTION  
 
 None.  
 
10. COMMITTEE MINUTES  
 

(a) Planning and Development Advisory Committee – March 8, 2016 
(b) Committee of Adjustments – March 8, 2016  

  
11. MUNICIPAL ANNOUCEMENTS 
 
12. UNFINISHED BUSINESS 
 
13. CLOSED ITEMS ≠ 

 
(a) Confidential Verbal Report from Karen Landry regarding litigation or potential 

litigation, advice that is subject to solicitor- client privilege, including 
communications necessary for that purpose and a proposed or pending 
acquisition or disposition of land by the municipality or local board – Plan 386. 
 

(b) Confidential Verbal Report from Karen Landry, CAO/Clerk, regarding litigation or 
potential litigation, including matters before administrative tribunals affecting the 
municipality or local board – 599 Arkell Rd. 
 

(c) Confidential Verbal Report from Karen Landry, CAO/Clerk, regarding personal 
matters about an identifiable individual, including municipal or local board 
employees – 2016 Ontario Senior of the Year Nominations 

  



THE CORPORATION OF THE TOWNSHIP OF PUSLINCH 
April 20, 2016 MEETING 

  
 

P a g e  | 5 
 

 
14. BY-LAWS ≠  

 
(a) A by-law to amend By-law 19/85, as amended by rezoning Part of Lot 6, 

Concession 1,from Agricultural (A-43) Zone to the Agricultural (A) Zone–Todd 
Noonan and Debbie McIntosh– Resolution No. 2016-152.  

 
(b) A by-Law to authorize the Mayor and Clerk to execute an Agreement with Her 

Majesty The Queen in Right of Canada regarding a Contribution Agreement for 
the Canada 150 Community Infrastructure Program (“CIP 150”). Resolution No. 
2016-229  
 

(c) A by-law to authorize the Mayor and Clerk to execute an Agreement with the 
YMCA-YWCA of Guelph – 2016 Summer Camp.  Resolution No. 2016-095 

 
15. CONFIRMING BY-LAW ≠ 
 

(a) By-law to confirm the proceedings of Council for the Corporation of the 
Township of Puslinch.  

 
16. ADJOURNMENT ≠ 



THE CORPORATION OF THE TOWNSHIP OF PUSLINCH 
March 31, 2016 SPECIAL COUNCIL MEETING 

 
 
 

Page 1 of 2 
 

M I N U T E S 
 

DATE:  Thursday, March 31, 2016  
TIME:   3:00 P.M. 

 
The March 31, 2016 Special Council Meeting was held on the above date and called to order 
at 3:00 p.m. in the Council Chambers, Aberfoyle. 
 
1. ATTENDANCE:   
 

Mayor Dennis Lever 
Councillor Matthew Bulmer 
Councillor Susan Fielding  
Councillor Ken Roth  
Councillor Wayne Stokley  
 
STAFF IN ATTENDANCE: 

 
1. Donna Tremblay, Deputy Clerk 
2. Karen Landry, CAO/Clerk  
3. Paul Creamer, Director of Finance/Treasurer 
4. Steve Goode, Fire Chief  
5. Luis Gomes, Deputy Fire Chief  

    
OTHERS IN ATTENDANCE 

 
None.  

 
2. DISCLOSURE OF PECUNIARY INTEREST & THE GENERAL NATURE THEREOF: 

 
None.  
 

3. Report FIR-2016-001 – Update - Quint Truck Purchase  
 
Resolution 2016-138      Moved by Councillor Stokley and  
     Seconded by Councillor Fielding 
 
That Report FIR-2016- 001 regarding Quint Truck purchase be received; and 
 
That Council authorize the single source retainer of Colchester Fire District No. 2 for the 
acquisition of 2003 American LaFrance Quint Truck; and  
 
That Council authorize the Chief Administrative Officer to enter into an Offer to Purchase 
with Colchester Fire District No. 2 in the amount of $149,000 U.S.  
 
CARRIED 
 

4. CONFIRMING BY-LAW  
 
(a) By-Law to confirm the proceedings of Council for the Corporation of the Township of 

Puslinch  
 

Resolution 2016-139     Moved by Councillor Bulmer and  
Seconded by Councillor Roth 

 
That the following By-law be taken as read three times and finally passed in open 
Council: 

 



THE CORPORATION OF THE TOWNSHIP OF PUSLINCH 
March 31, 2016 SPECIAL COUNCIL MEETING 

 
 
 

Page 2 of 2 
 

• By-Law 23/16 being a by-law to confirm the proceedings of Council for the 
Corporation of the Township of Puslinch at its meeting held on the 31st day of  
March, 2016. 

 
CARRIED 

 
5.  ADJOURNMENT: 
 

Resolution No. 2016-140:   Moved by Councillor Roth and  
Seconded by Councillor Bulmer 
 

That Council hereby adjourns at 3:10 p.m. 
    
CARRIED 

 
   ________________________________________ 

     Dennis Lever, Mayor 
    

 ________________________________________ 
  Karen Landry, CAO Clerk 



THE CORPORATION OF THE TOWNSHIP OF PUSLINCH 
April 6, 2016 COUNCIL MEETING 

 
 
 

Page 1 of 10 
 

M I N U T E S 
 

DATE:  Wednesday, April 6, 2016  
TIME:   12:30 p.m. 

 
The April 6, 2016 Regular Council Meeting was held on the above date and called to order at 
12:30 p.m. in the Council Chambers, Aberfoyle.  
 
1. ATTENDANCE:   

 
Mayor Dennis Lever  
Councillor Matthew Bulmer 
Councillor Susan Fielding  
Councillor Ken Roth  
Councillor Wayne Stokley  
 
STAFF IN ATTENDANCE: 

 
1. Karen Landry, CAO/Clerk  
2. Donna Tremblay, Deputy Clerk 
3. Paul Creamer, Director of Finance/Treasurer 
4. Robert Kelly, Chief Building Official 
5. Don Creed, Director of Public Works and Parks  

    
OTHERS IN ATTENDANCE 
 
1. Dennis Lea  
2. Doug Smith  
3. Doug Huether 
4. Karen Lever 
5. Nick Murray 
6. Jeremy Devries 
7. Aldo Salis 
 

2. DISCLOSURE OF PECUNIARY INTEREST & THE GENERAL NATURE THEREOF: 
 
None.  
 

3. ADOPTION OF THE MINUTES: 
 
(a) Council Meeting – March 16, 2016  
(b) Closed Council Meeting – March 16, 2016 
(c) Public Meeting Minutes –Todd Noonan & Debbie McIntosh -   March 3, 2016 
(d) Public Meeting Minutes – Brad Coles– March 3, 2016 

 
Resolution No. 2016-141  Moved by Councillor Roth and  

Seconded by Councillor Bulmer 
 
That the minutes of the following meetings be adopted as written and distributed:  

 
(a) Council Meeting –March 16, 2016  
(b) Closed Council Meeting – March 16, 2016 
 
That the minutes of the following meetings be received:  
 
(c) Public Meeting Minutes –Todd Noonan & Debbie McIntosh -   March 3, 2016 
(d) Public Meeting Minutes – Brad Coles– March 3, 2016 
 
CARRIED 

 



THE CORPORATION OF THE TOWNSHIP OF PUSLINCH 
April 6, 2016 COUNCIL MEETING 

 
 
 

Page 2 of 10 
 

4. BUSINESS ARISING OUT OF THE MINUTES: 
 
None.  
 

5. PUBLIC MEETINGS:  
 

1. Calfass Road Construction between Highway 6 and Victoria Street  
 

*note this Public Open House will be held on Thursday, April 7, 2016 at 7:00 p.m. at 
the Municipal Complex – 7404 Wellington Rd. 34 
 
(a) Notice of Open House 

 
2. 2016 Housekeeping Amendment to Zoning By-Law 19/85. 

 
*note this Public meeting will be held on Thursday, April 21, 2016 at 7:00 p.m. at the 
Municipal Complex – 7404 Wellington Rd. 34 
 

(a) Notice of Public Meeting  
 

6. COMMUNICATIONS: 
  
1. CBM  

Puslinch Pit – Licence No. 17600  
4313 Sideroad 25 South 

 
(a) Groundwater Science Corp. Puslinch Pit – Licence No. 17600 monthly monitoring report 

– January 2016 dated February 1, 2016.   
 

Mr. Stan Denhoed, Harden Environmental Services Ltd. has reviewed the report and 
advised that there are no exceedences reported and he has no further comments.  

 
 
 2. Fletcher Creek Ecological Preserve  
 

(a) Correspondence from Hamilton Conservation regarding Parking on Gore Road – 
Fletcher Creek Ecological Preserve (FCEP) dated March 10, 2016. 
  
Resolution No. 2016-142:  Moved by Councillor Bulmer and  

Seconded by Councillor Roth 
 

That Council receive the correspondence from the Hamilton Conservation regarding 
Parking on Gore Road – Fletcher Creek Ecological Preserve (FCEP) dated March 10, 
2016; and  
 
That a letter be sent to Hamilton Conservation Board requesting them to consider the 
request for a modest parking area.   
 
CARRIED 
 

3.  Mill Creek Pit  
Licence No. 5738 
7115 Concession 2  

  
(a) Correspondence from Dufferin Aggregates regarding Monthly Monitoring Report, Mill 

Creek Pit, License No. 5738, Township of Puslinch, Wellington County (February 2016) 
dated March 10, 2016.    
 
Mr. Stan Denhoed, Harden Environmental Services Ltd. has reviewed the report 
and does not have concern with the monthly monitoring report and recognizes 



THE CORPORATION OF THE TOWNSHIP OF PUSLINCH 
April 6, 2016 COUNCIL MEETING 

 
 
 

Page 3 of 10 
 

that most monitors were frozen and data set is incomplete and March data will 
likely be more complete 
 

4. Request to Waive Fees 
 

(a) Correspondence from Optimist Club of Puslinch regarding Puslinch Old Timers Baseball 
Team year end tournament September 16, 17, 2016 dated March 29, 2016. 

 
Council requested that staff work with the Optimist Club of Puslinch regarding location 
of the beer tent and that they obtain all necessary permits including alcohol and building 
permits for the event.    

 
Resolution No. 2016-143:  Moved by Councillor Roth and  

Seconded by Councillor Stokley  
 

That Council receive the correspondence from the Optimist Club of Puslinch regarding 
Puslinch Old Timers Baseball Team year end tournament September 16, 17, 2016 or 
rain date dated March 29, 2016; and 
 
That Council reduce the fees associated with the rental of the use of the Aberfoyle and 
Old Morriston Ball Diamonds at a cost of $312.00 excluding HST (including 2 line 
draggings per day); and  
 
That Council requests that in order to determine if additional township staff resources 
are required for the event (additional lining and dragging of diamonds) that the Puslinch 
Old Timers Baseball Team provide staff with a copy of the tournament schedule by no 
later than Monday, September 12th; and  

 
That the Puslinch Old Timers Baseball Team assume the costs for additional staff 
resources associated with the event; and  

 
That staff advise the Puslinch Old Timer’s Baseball Team that the fees have been 
reduced. 

 
CARRIED  
  

(b) Correspondence from Caring for Little Kidneys Campaign for MacKids regarding use of 
electronic sign dated March 30, 2016. 
 
Resolution No. 2016-144:  Moved by Councillor Stokley and  

Seconded by Councillor Fielding 
 

That Council receive the correspondence from the Caring for Little Kidneys Campaign 
for MacKids regarding use of electronic sign dated March 30, 2016; and 
 
That Council authorize the usage of the electronic sign at the Puslinch Community 
Centre and waiving of fees for 4 lines for one week from Saturday, June 11th to 
Saturday, June 18th at a cost of $71.19 ($63.00 + $8.19 HST) associated with the 
Caring for Little Kidney’s Campaign; and  
 
That Staff advise Tim and Charlotte Belevins that the fees have been waived.   
 
CARRIED  
 

5.  Intergovernmental Affairs  
 
(a) Various correspondence for review.  

  



THE CORPORATION OF THE TOWNSHIP OF PUSLINCH 
April 6, 2016 COUNCIL MEETING 

 
 
 

Page 4 of 10 
 

 
 Resolution No. 2016-145:   Moved by Councillor Roth and  

 Seconded by Councillor Bulmer 
 

That the correspondence items listed on the Council Agenda for April 6, 2016 Council 
meeting be received.  
 
CARRIED 
 

7. DELEGATIONS/PRESENTATIONS 
 

1. Ms. Jana Burns, Director Economic Development, County of Wellington regarding 
Economic Development. 

 
Resolution No. 2016-146:   Moved by Councillor Bulmer and  

   Seconded by Councillor Roth 
 

That Council receive the delegation from Ms. Jana Burns, Economic Development, 
County of Wellington regarding Economic Development. 
 
CARRIED  
 

2. Mr. Mark Paoli, Manager of Policy Planning and Mr. Kyle Davis, Risk Management 
Official regarding County of Wellington Official Plan Amendment #98 – County File No. 
OP-2016-02, County of Wellington – Drinking Water Source Protection. 
 
Karen Landry, CAO/Clerk requested that Council provide their comments to her so that 
they may be provided to the County of Wellington Planning Department.   
 
Resolution No. 2016-147:   Moved by Councillor Roth and  

   Seconded by Councillor Bulmer 
 

That Council receive the delegation from Mr. Mark Paoli, Manager of Policy Planning 
and Mr. Kyle Davis, Risk Management Official regarding County of Wellington Official 
Plan Amendment #98 – County File No. OP-2016-02, County of Wellington – Drinking 
Water Source Protection; and 
 
That Council receive the correspondence from Gary Cousins, Director of Planning and 
Development regarding County Official Plan Amendment #98 – OP-2016-02, Drinking 
Water Source Protection dated March 3, 2016.  
 
CARRIED  
 

3. Mr. Mark Paoli, Manager of Policy Planning regarding County Official Plan Amendment 
#99 – County File No.:  OP-2015-02, County of Wellington – Growth Forecast and 
Second Unit Policy Updates. 

 
Resolution No. 2016-148:   Moved by Councillor Bulmer and  

   Seconded by Councillor Roth 
 

That Council receive the delegation from Mr. Mark Paoli, Manager of Policy Planning 
regarding County Official Plan Amendment #99 – County File No.:  OP-2015-02, County 
of Wellington – Growth Forecast and Second Unit Policy Updates; and  
 
That Council receive the correspondence from Gary Cousins, Director of Planning and 
Development regarding County Official Plan Amendment #99 – County File No.:  OP-
2016-02, County of Wellington – Growth Forecast and Second Unit Policy Updates 
dated March 14, 2016;  
 
CARRIED  



THE CORPORATION OF THE TOWNSHIP OF PUSLINCH 
April 6, 2016 COUNCIL MEETING 

 
 
 

Page 5 of 10 
 

 
 

8. REPORTS: 
 

1. Puslinch Fire and Rescue Services  
 
None.  
 

2. Finance Department  
 

(a) Report FIR-2016-007 – Assessment Appeals Update. ≠  
    
Resolution No. 2016-149:  Moved by Councillor Roth and  
   Seconded by Councillor Bulmer 
 
That Report FIN-2016-007 Assessment Appeals Update be received; and 
 
That Council approves to fund $137,667 of the tax write-offs resulting from the gravel pit 
assessment appeals from the 2015 Surplus. 
 
CARRIED 
 

3. Administration Department 
 

(a) Report ADM-2016-007- Master Plan Recommendations and Service Level Review – 
Schedule of Meetings. ≠ 
 
Resolution No. 2016-150  Moved by Councillor Bulmer and  
   Seconded by Councillor Roth 
 
That Report ADM-2016-007 regarding Master Plan Recommendations and Service 
Level Review – Schedule of Meetings, be received; and  

 
That Council hold special meetings on: 
 
Wednesday, June 1, 2016 at 9:00 a.m. 
Wednesday, June 15, 2016 at 9:00 p.m. (all day) 
Thursday, July 21, 2016 at 1:00 p.m. 
Tuesday, August 9, 2016 at 8:30 a.m. 
Wednesday, September 7, 2016 at 9:00 a.m. 

 
That the Township’s website be updated to include these special meetings of Council. 
 
CARRIED 
 

(b) Report – County of Wellington Emergency Management – Townline Road Municipal 
Civil and Canada Post mailing addresses dated March 11, 2016.≠ 

 
Resolution No. 2016-151  Moved by Councillor Roth and  

   Seconded by Councillor Bulmer 
 

That Council receive the Report from the County of Wellington Emergency Management 
Department regarding Townline Road Municipal Civil and Canada Post mailing 
addresses dated March 11, 2016; and  
 
That Canada Post be advised that the Township supports correction of the mailing 
addresses as outlined in the County of Wellington Report. 
 
CARRIED  
 



THE CORPORATION OF THE TOWNSHIP OF PUSLINCH 
April 6, 2016 COUNCIL MEETING 

 
 
 

Page 6 of 10 
 

4. Planning and Building Department  
 
(a) Correspondence from Gary Cousins, Director of Planning and Development 

regarding County Official Plan Amendment #98 – County File No. OP-2016-02, 
County of Wellington – Drinking Water Source Protection dated March 3, 2016. 

 
See Item 7.2 
 
(b) Report – County of Wellington Planning Department – Amending By-Law 

(Noonan/McIntosh) Zoning By-Law Amendment D14/NOO 6620 Concession 1 (Part 
Lot 6, Concession 1), Puslinch.≠ 

 
Resolution No. 2016-152  Moved by Councillor Fielding and  

   Seconded by Councillor Stokley 
 
That Council receive the Report from the County of Wellington Planning Department – 
Amending By-Law (Noonan/McIntosh) Zoning By-Law Amendment D14/NOO 6620 
Concession 1 (Part Lot 6, Concession 1), Puslinch; and  
 
That Council enact a by-law to amend By-Law Number 19/85, as amended, by rezoning 
Part of Lot 6, Concession 1, from Agricultural (A-43) Zone to the AGRICULTURAL (A) 
ZONE, as specifically outlined in the draft Zoning By-Law Amendment prepared by the 
County of Wellington dated March 21, 2016. 
 
CARRIED 
 
(c) Correspondence from Gary Cousins, Director of Planning and Development 

regarding County Official Plan Amendment #99 – County File No.:  OP-2015-02, 
County of Wellington – Growth Forecast and Second Unit Policy Updates dated 
March 14, 2016.≠ 

 
See Item 7.3  
 
(d) Report PD-2016-010 – Public Meeting – Rezoning Application File D14/KRA – Ned 

& Lily Krayishnik, Concession 1, Part Lots 6 & 7, municipally known as 6637 and 
6643 Concession 2.≠ 

 
Resolution No. 2016-153  Moved by Councillor Stokley and  
   Seconded by Councillor Fielding 
 
That Report PD-2016-010 regarding Notice of Public Meeting – Rezoning Application 
file D14/KRA – Ned & Lily Krayishnik, Concession 1, Part Lots 6 & 7, municipally known 
as 6637 and 6643 Concession 2, be received; and 
 
That Council authorize the holding of a Statutory Public Meeting on Thursday May 19th, 
at 7:00 pm in the Council Chambers, Municipal Complex. 
 
CARRIED 
 
(e) Report PD-2016-011- Site Alteration By-Law Proposed Exemption Amendment.≠ 

 
Resolution No. 2016-154  Moved by Councillor Stokley and  
   Seconded by Councillor Fielding 
 
That Council receive the correspondence from Wood Bull LLP regarding Site Alteration 
By-law – Proposed Exemption Amendment, Council Meeting 6 April 2016, Written 
Submission dated April 6, 2016.   
 
CARRIED 
 



THE CORPORATION OF THE TOWNSHIP OF PUSLINCH 
April 6, 2016 COUNCIL MEETING 

 
 
 

Page 7 of 10 
 

Resolution No. 2016-155  Moved by Councillor Fielding and  
   Seconded by Councillor Stokley 
 
That Report PD-2016-011 Site Alteration By-law – Proposed exemption amendment be 
received; and  
 
That Council amend the Site Alteration By-law to include an exemption for projects with 
an active building permit to a limit of alteration of 10 m from the proposed building 
envelope. 
 
LOST 
 

5. Roads & Parks Department  
 

 None.  
 

6. Recreation Department 
 

None.  
 

7. Mayor’s Updates  
 
(a) Excerpt from Municipal Status Report – 2015 Third Quarterly Report. 
 
    

9. NOTICE OF MOTION:  
  
None.  
 

10. COMMITTEE MINUTES 
 
(a) Recreation Committee –  February  16, 2016 
 
Resolution No. 2016-156:   Moved by Councillor Stokley and  

Seconded by Councillor Fielding 
 
That Council hereby receives the following minutes as information:  

 
(a) Recreation Committee –February 16, 2016. 

 
CARRIED 

 
 

11. MUNICIPAL ANNOUNCEMENTS 
 
ATV Safety Evening  
 
Councillor Stokley advised that he attended the ATV Safety Evening presented by the 
Wellington County Farm and Home Safety Association and the Wellington County OPP at 
the Puslinch Community Centre on April 5, 2016.  Councillor Stokley advised that it was a 
well attended and informative event.   
 
COP Committee  
 
Councillor Stokley advised that the COP Committee will be sponsoring along with Duff’s 
Church presentations on April 13, 2016, regarding distracted driving and alcohol problems 
in the County of Wellington.  The presentations are free of charge and include a luncheon.   

  



THE CORPORATION OF THE TOWNSHIP OF PUSLINCH 
April 6, 2016 COUNCIL MEETING 

 
 
 

Page 8 of 10 
 

 
Puslinch Lake Conservation Association  
 
Councillor Fielding advised that the Association will be holding their Town Hall Meeting on 
May 17th, 2016 at 7:30 p.m. in the dockside room at the Puslinch Marina Restaurant.  
Councillor Fielding also advised that the Lakeside Home Tour will be taking place on 
Saturday, June 25, 2016.     
 
Safe Communities Workshop  
 
Councillor Bulmer advised that he attended a Safe Communities Workshop on Saturday, 
April 2, 2016.  Councillor Bulmer advised that the workshop was well attended and had 
many excellent speakers including a presentation on drugs and alcohol and falls 
prevention.   
 
County of Wellington Spring Road Tour  
 
Mayor Lever advised that the County of Wellington Road Tour will be taking place on 
Thursday, April 21, 2016, bus spaces are limited and interested Staff and Council are 
requested to contact him directly with their interest. 
 
Highway 6 By-Pass Annoucement  
 
Mayor Lever expressed to those in attendance the excellent news received by the 
Township on March 29th that the province will be moving forward with the plans to improve 
traffic flow on Highway 6 between Freelton and Guelph with the construction of a by-pass.      
   

12. UNFINISHED BUSINESS  
 
None.  
 

13. CLOSED MEETING 
 

Council was in closed session from 12:32 p.m. to 12:36 p.m.  
Council recessed from 12:37 p.m. to 1:00 p.m. 

 
(a) Confidential Verbal Report from Paul Creamer, Director of Finance/Treasurer regarding 

litigation or potential litigation, including matters before administrative tribunals affecting 
the municipality or local board and advice that is subject to solicitor client privilege, 
including communications necessary for that purpose– Aggregate Assessment Appeals 
- Minutes of Settlement. 

 
Resolution No. 2016-156    Moved by Councillor Roth and  

Seconded by Councillor Stokley 
 

That Council shall go into closed session under Section 239 of the Municipal Act for the 
purpose of: 
 
(a) Confidential Verbal Report from Paul Creamer, Director of Finance/Treasurer 

regarding litigation or potential litigation, including matters before administrative 
tribunals affecting the municipality or local board and advice that is subject to 
solicitor client privilege, including communications necessary for that purpose– 
Aggregate Assessment Appeals - Minutes of Settlement. 
 
CARRIED  

  



THE CORPORATION OF THE TOWNSHIP OF PUSLINCH 
April 6, 2016 COUNCIL MEETING 

 
 
 

Page 9 of 10 
 

 
Resolution No. 2016-157    Moved by Councillor Roth and  

  Seconded by Councillor Stokley 
 
That Council move into open session. 
 
CARRIED 

 
(a) Confidential Verbal Report from Paul Creamer, Director of Finance/Treasurer regarding 

litigation or potential litigation, including matters before administrative tribunals affecting 
the municipality or local board and advice that is subject to solicitor client privilege, 
including communications necessary for that purpose– Aggregate Assessment Appeals 
- Minutes of Settlement. 
 
Resolution No. 2016-158   Moved by Councillor Stokley and  

Seconded by Councillor Fielding 
 

That Council receive the Confidential Verbal Report from Paul Creamer, Director of 
Finance/Treasurer regarding litigation or potential litigation, including matters before 
administrative tribunals affecting the municipality or local board and advice that is 
subject to solicitor client privilege, including communications necessary for that 
purpose– Aggregate Assessment Appeals - Minutes of Settlement; and  
 
That the Mayor and Clerk be authorized to execute Minutes of Settlement for the 
following roll numbers:  
  
2301 000 002-12800 
2301 000 004 12300 
2301 000 006 20700 
2301 000 006 12050 
2301 000 007 10100 
 
CARRIED  
  

 
14. BY-LAWS:  

 
None.  
 

    
15. CONFIRMING BY-LAW  

 
(a) By-Law to confirm the proceedings of Council for the Corporation of the Township of 

Puslinch  
 

 
Resolution 2016-159   Moved by Councillor Stokley and  

Seconded by Councillor Fielding 
 
That the following By-law be taken as read three times and finally passed in open Council: 
 
(a) By-Law 024/16 being a by-law to confirm the proceedings of Council for the Corporation 

of the Township of Puslinch at its meeting held on the 6th day of April, 2016. 
 
CARRIED  

  



THE CORPORATION OF THE TOWNSHIP OF PUSLINCH 
April 6, 2016 COUNCIL MEETING 

 
 
 

Page 10 of 10 
 

 
 
16.  ADJOURNMENT: 
 

Resolution No. 2016-160:   Moved by Councillor Stokley and  
           Seconded by Councillor Fielding 
 

That Council hereby adjourns at 3:37 p.m. 
    
CARRIED 

 
   ________________________________________ 

    Dennis Lever, Mayor 
  

   
 ________________________________________ 

  Karen Landry, CAO/Clerk 



 

THE TOWNSHIP OF PUSLINCH 
NOTICE OF PUBLIC MEETING 

TAKE NOTICE that the Council of the Township of Puslinch will hold a public meeting on Thursday April 21st, 2016 at 
7:00 pm in the Council Chambers of the Municipal Complex at 7404 Wellington Road 34, to consider a Housekeeping 
Amendment to Zoning By-law 19/85, pursuant to the requirements of Section 34 of the Planning Act, R.S.O., 1990, as 
amended. 

THE PURPOSE AND EFFECT - These are Township initiated “housekeeping” amendments that affect all lands in the 
Township of Puslinch (unless otherwise specified) as generally itemized below:  

1.   Amend, add and remove definitions and general provisions 
2.   Amend zone preambles for additional clarity 
3.   Add or amend other provisions 
4.   Addition of Minimum Distance Separation (MDS I and II) regulations 
5.   Amend certain housing and agricultural regulations, including but not limited to provisions for: 
a.   A temporary residence during construction 
b.   Accessory apartments in Agricultural and Estate Residential Zones  
c.   Farm help dwellings  
d.   Bed and breakfast establishments 
6.   Removal of separation distance for group homes 
7.   Wording clarifications for Mini Lakes Zone and increased recreation building cap of 1,100 sq.m 
8.   Illustrations to assist with definitions and provisions 
9.   Map change to rezone Part Lot 10, Concession 4 from Agricultural Exception (A-2) Zone to Agricultural (A) Zone 

to remove the provision allowing a kennel on the property (see Key Map 1). 

ORAL OR WRITTEN SUBMISSIONS may be made by the public either in support or in opposition to the proposed Zoning 
By-law Amendment. Any person may attend the public meeting and make and oral submission or direct a written 
submission to the Township Clerk at the address below. All those present at the public meeting will be given the 
opportunity to make an oral submission, however; it is requested that those who wish to address Council notify the 
Township Clerk in advance of the public meeting. 

TAKE NOTICE that if a person or public body does not make an oral submission at a public meeting or make a written 
submission to the Township of Puslinch before the Zoning By-law is passed, the person or public body is not entitled to 
appeal the decision of the Council of the Township of Puslinch to the Ontario Municipal Board. 

AND TAKE NOTICE that if a person or public body does not make an oral submission at a public meeting or make a 
written submission to the Township of Puslinch before the Zoning By-law is passed, the person or public body may not 
be added as a party to the hearing of an appeal before the Ontario Municipal Board unless, in the opinion of the Board, 
there are reasonable grounds to do so. 

REQUEST FOR NOTICE OF DECISION regarding the Zoning By-law amendment must be made in written format to the 
Township Clerk at the address shown below. 

ADDITIONAL INFORMATION regarding the proposed amendment is available for review between 9:00 a.m. and 4:30 
p.m. at the Township of Puslinch Municipal Office. 

Dated at the Township of Puslinch on this 25th day of March, 2016 

Karen Landry Key Map 
CAO/Clerk 
Township of Puslinch 
7404 Wellington Road 34  
Guelph, Ontario  N1H 6H9 
Phone (519) 763-1226 
admin@puslinch.ca 

 



 

PLANNING REPORT  
for the TOWNSHIP OF PUSLINCH 

Prepared by the County of Wellington Planning and Development Department 

DATE: February 18, 2016 
TO: Kelly Patzer, Development Coordinator 

Township of Puslinch 
FROM:  Sarah Wilhelm, Senior Planner 

County of Wellington 
SUBJECT: 2016 HOUSEKEEPING AMENDMENT TO ZONING BY-LAW 19/85 

Township-wide Zoning By-law Amendment 
ATTACHMENT: Table of Proposed Changes 
 
SUMMARY 
The purpose of this report is to provide our preliminary comments on a housekeeping amendment to 
the Township’s Zoning By-law. We would recommend that a public meeting be scheduled so that notice 
may be given to statutory agencies and members of the public.  
 
INTRODUCTION 
Housekeeping changes or amendments are intended to keep a zoning by-law relevant with other policy 
or legislation, user friendly, accurate and manageable. The proposed housekeeping changes have come 
to light through day to day usage of the document and are to edit, clarify and update the By-law. The 
housekeeping amendment has been developed in consultation with Robert Kelly, Chief Building Official 
and Kelly Patzer, Development Coordinator. 
 
PROPOSAL 
The housekeeping amendment will: 
 

1. Amend, add and remove definitions and general provisions 
2. Amend zone preambles for additional clarity 
3. Add or amend other provisions  
4. Add minimum distance separation regulations and definitions 
5. Amend certain housing and agricultural regulations 
6. Amend and add bed and breakfast regulations 

 
A “Table of Proposed Changes” is attached to this report to provide a description, reason and details of 
the housekeeping amendments proposed. Many of the changes are to clarify or improve definitions, 
general provisions and other sections of the by-law (see item 1 to 5, 7 to 12 and 15 of the Report 
Attachment). The following topics will be discussed in additional detail (the number shown in brackets 
cross-references the attached “Table of Proposed Changes”): 
 

• Separation distance for group homes (6) 
• Mini Lakes (13) 
• Minimum Distance Separation (MDS) (14) 
• Temporary residence during construction (16) 
• Second units  (17)  
• Farm help dwellings (18) 
• Bed & Breakfast Establishments (19) 
• Map change (20) 

 



 
PLANNING REPORT for the TOWNSHIP OF PUSLINCH   
Housekeeping Amendment to Zoning By-law 19/85 
February 18, 2016   Page 2 

DISCUSSION 
 
Separation Distance for Group Homes 
In February 2015, the Ontario Human Rights Commission (OHRC) corresponded with municipalities on 
the topic of “Applying a human rights lens in zoning, licensing and municipal decision-making”. Examples 
were given of municipalities that have removed minimum separation distance (MSD) and other zoning 
restrictions for group homes. The Township’s Zoning By-law currently has a 10 km separation distance 
between group homes. As there is no planning justification for this distance and in light of the Ontario 
Human Rights Code we would recommend removal of the separation distance. 
 
Mini Lakes 
As part of the housekeeping amendment Mini Lakes has requested that the recreation building area cap 
be increased from 500 sq.m (5,382 sq.ft.) to 1,100 sq.m (11,841 sq.ft.) for the following reasons: 
 

“The existing 500 sq.m. provision is a hold-over from the original 1990 zoning by-law and 
represented the existing building.  That building however will need to be replaced probably 
within the next 3 years and in order to meet guidelines for accessibility (assuming the Built 
Environment Standard isn’t already in effect) and building and fire code requirements for the 
number of people expected to attend at functions like member meetings, a larger building 
footprint would definitely be required.”   Dianne Paron, Mini Lakes 

 
Other proposed changes are to add the date of passing of By-law 9/13 and provide additional 
clarification of lot coverage. 
 
Minimum Distance Separation (MDS) 
The MDS Formulae are intended to minimize nuisance complaints about livestock facilities due to odour 
and thereby reduce potential land use conflicts. There are two formulae: MDSI and MDSII. MDSI is 
applied to ensure that appropriate setbacks are provided from existing livestock facilities to proposed 
development. MDSI is usually dealt with by the County. MDSII is applied to ensure that a new or 
expanded livestock facility provides appropriate setbacks from existing development. MDSII is usually 
dealt with by staff of the local building department. 
 
The Province and County both provide a policy basis to apply MDS. The Provincial Policy Statement 
provides the following policy direction for MDS implementation in Prime Agricultural and Rural Areas 
(Secondary Agricultural): 
 

“New land uses, including the creation of lots, and new or expanding livestock facilities, shall 
comply with the minimum distance separation formulae.” (Section 1.1.5.9 & 2.3.3.3) 

 
The County Official Plan also provides similar policy direction for Prime and Secondary Agricultural Areas 
of the County (Section 6.4.10 & 6.5.6). 
 
Guideline 1 of the Implementation Guidelines for the Minimum Distance Separation (MDS) Formula 
states the following: 
 

“MDS Formulae and criteria are to be referenced in Official Plans, included in zoning by-laws and 
applied in designations and zones where livestock facilities are a permitted use. MDS will be 
applied in Prime Agricultural Areas and Rural Areas as defined by the Provincial Policy 
Statement, 2005.” 

 



 
PLANNING REPORT for the TOWNSHIP OF PUSLINCH   
Housekeeping Amendment to Zoning By-law 19/85 
February 18, 2016   Page 3 

MDS is not included in the Puslinch Zoning By-law. There is however, a requirement for 180 m 
separation from adjacent barns of an intensive agricultural use in the Estate Residential and Rural 
Residential Zones. These requirements are proposed to be removed as MDS would be the appropriate 
replacement. By including MDS provisions in the zoning by-law, MDS will be considered “applicable law” 
for building permit issuance. 
 
The housekeeping amendment would introduce two new general provisions, one for MDSI and another 
for MDSII. These are the same as, or very similar to other provisions elsewhere in the County.  
Corresponding definitions have also been included to support MDS implementation and are consistent 
with the MDS Guidelines. 
 
Temporary Residence during Construction 
The Township currently follows a Council approved policy of March 1, 2013 for dealing with a temporary 
residence during construction of a new one. These take the form of either:  
 

1. a temporary mobile home when a new dwelling is constructed on a vacant lot; or 
2. a temporary single detached dwelling when a new dwelling is constructed on the same lot. 

 
The current policy requires minor variance approval for either circumstance. The proposed regulations 
would allow these temporary residences as of right-of-right subject to the following:  
 

• only apply to the Agricultural (A) Zone 
• restrict the timeframe of the temporary residence to 12 months after the building permit for the 

new dwelling is issued 
• require that the Chief Building Official be satisfied with water and sewage, securities to ensure 

removal of temporary dwelling 
 
Second Units 
In 2011, the province approved Bill 140, the Strong Communities through Affordable Housing Act. This 
legislation was intended to ensure that a full range of housing, including affordable housing, is provided 
in Ontario. County staff is in the process of reviewing County Official Plan policies relative to the 
legislation. Once the County review is complete, we would recommend that Puslinch Council revisit the 
provision of second units in the Township. 
 
Under the current policy environment, in Prime and Secondary areas of the County, the Official Plan 
allows for an accessory apartment unit within the main residence on a lot, provided that adequate 
water supply and sewage disposal systems are available. In Country Residential Areas the Plan permits 
residential uses in single detached houses at low densities. 
 
We have prepared new regulations to allow for accessory apartments within the main dwelling on an 
agricultural or estate residential lot. In all cases, the unit cannot exceed 45% of the principal dwelling 
but no more than 100 m2 (1,076 sq.ft.) and must connect to the existing well and septic system. In the 
case of estate residential lots, there is a maximum of 55 sq.m (592 sq.ft.) above grade proposed. 
Accessory apartments are not to be permitted in a detached building or structure. 
 
  



 
PLANNING REPORT for the TOWNSHIP OF PUSLINCH   
Housekeeping Amendment to Zoning By-law 19/85 
February 18, 2016   Page 4 

 
Farm Help 
The current by-law does not permit farm help as-of-right. New farm help residences may only be 
permitted through a site-specific zoning by-law amendment. The new provisions for a “secondary 
dwelling accessory to a farm” would allow for a farm help dwelling as-of-right for farms with a minimum 
lot area of 35 ha (86 ac). There are standards included to ensure that the second dwelling would be 
located within a 61 m (200 ft) radius of the farm residence and share a common driveway. New 
definitions are included.  
 
Bed and Breakfast 
Currently, a bed and breakfast (B&B) is a defined use in the by-law, but is not a permitted use in any 
zone. The Housekeeping amendment would:  
 

• Provide for an expanded bed and breakfast establishment definition with up to five guest rooms 
• Allow for a bed and breakfast establishment in the Agricultural (A) Zone  
• Add new parking requirements for B&B establishments 
• Add B&B establishments to the list of uses not considered to be a home occupation for 

clarification purposes 
 
Map Change 
A map change is proposed to remove kennel zoning (A-2) from the severed lands of application B47/15 
(Watson) located at Part Lot 10, Concession 4. This would satisfy a condition of approval of the 
severance as the new lot would be too small for a kennel under the Township’s Dog Control By-law.  
 
PUBLIC AND AGENCY COMMENTS 
There are no public or agency comments at this time as the application will be circulated at the time of 
public meeting notice. 
 
NEXT STEPS 
We would recommend that the public meeting for this amendment be scheduled. Materials associated 
with the housekeeping amendment should be available to the public at the Township office prior to the 
public meeting date. Following the public meeting, Township Council may further consider any matters 
raised by the public, statutory agencies and any other comments and concerns identified. We will be in 
attendance at the public meeting to present the amendment and hear public comments and Council 
discussion. 
 
Our planning recommendations will be provided following the public meeting and resolution of any 
outstanding issues. 
 
Respectfully submitted 
County of Wellington Planning and Development Department  
 
 
 
 
_____________________________ 
Sarah Wilhelm, BES, MCIP, RPP 
Senior Planner  
 
c. Robert Kelly, Chief Building Official 



Table of Proposed Changes 
Township of Puslinch Housekeeping Amendment 
 
Definitions 

# DESCRIPTION By-law Reference Proposed Amendment to By-law 
1 LOT FRONTAGE 

DEFINITION FOR CUL-
DE-SACS OR CURVED 
FRONTAGES 
• for clarification 

2(120) Definitions (a) “LOT FRONTAGE” means 
the horizontal distance between the side lot lines of a lot, such distance being measured 
along a line which is parallel to the front lot line of the lot at the minimum front yard depth 
required hereby on such lot. 
the horizontal distance between the side lot lines measured along the front lot line, but 
where the front lot line is not a straight line or where the side lot lines are not parallel, the 
lot frontage is to be measured by a line 6.0 m back from and parallel to the chord of the lot 
frontage, and for the purpose of this paragraph the chord of the lot frontage is a straight 
line joining the two points where the side lot lines intersect the front lot line. 

      
  New Appendix A “APPENDIX A     ILLUSTRATIONS OF DEFINITIONS AND PROVISIONS”  

Note: The diagrams and illustrations on the following pages are for the purposes of illustration 
only and do not form part of the zoning by-law. 

2 UNDERGROUND 
STRUCTURES 
• for clarification 
• new regulation for 

projections into 
required yards 

2(181) “STRUCTURE” means anything constructed or erected, the use of which requires location on or in 
the ground, or attached to something located on or in the ground, but does not include the 
permanent way of a railway, any paved surface located directly on the ground or sewage 
systems. 

 3(23)(a)vii Underground service structures such as sewage systems and firefighting tank reservoirs which do 
not project more than 2.0 metres into a required interior side yard or rear yard, and which do not 
project more than 3.0 m into a required front yard or exterior side yard. 

3 FRONT LOT LINE 
DEFINITION FOR 
CORNER LOTS 
• clarifies that 

shortest lot line is 
front lot line 

2(121) Definitions (a) “FRONT LOT LINE” 
means: 

(i) in the case of an interior lot, the street line of the lot the line 
dividing the lot from the street; 

    (ii) in the case of a corner lot, either street line of the lot, whereas the 
other street line shall be deemed an exterior side lot line the 
shorter lot line abutting a street; or  

4 BUILDING HEIGHT 
ILLUSTRATIONS 
• for clarification 

New Appendix A “APPENDIX A  ILLUSTRATIONS OF DEFINITIONS AND PROVISIONS” 
Note: The diagrams and illustrations on the following pages are for the purposes of illustration 
only and do not form part of the zoning by-law. 

Text additions  shown in red underlined text 
Text removals  shown in black strikeout text 



 

 
Table of Proposed Changes  2 
Township of Puslinch Housekeeping Amendments  
February 18, 2016 Version    

Text additions  shown in red underlined text 
Text removals  shown in black strikeout text 

General Provisions 

# DESCRIPTION By-law Reference Proposed Amendment to By-law 
5 SITE ALTERATION 

“DUMPING” 
3(6)  General 
Provisions 

GRADING 

 • dumping is dealt 
with under 
Municipal Act, Site 
Plan Agreement or 
Site Plan Control 

 (b) DUMPING 
Unless such activity is accessory to a permitted use, no person shall dump or otherwise 
deposit or store any topsoil, earth, sand, gravel or fill on any lot unless written permission 
has first been obtained from the Building Inspector. This provision does not apply to any 
dumping which is accessory to a permitted use. 

6 SEPARATION 
DISTANCE FOR GROUP 
HOMES 
• removal of 10 km 

separation distance  

3(7) General 
Provisions 

Notwithstanding any other provisions of this By-law to the contrary, a Group Home may be 
permitted in any single dwelling unit provided there is no Group Home or similar facility within 
10 kilometres of the proposed facility and the dwelling unit must have has 20 square metres per 
person residing within the unit. Group Homes must be registered with the municipality as per 
Section 236 of Tthe Municipal Act, R.S.O 1980, Chapter 302. 

7 OPEN STORAGE 
• clarification of open 

storage 
requirements for 
home occupations 

• increase in height 
for screening from 
1.5 m to 2.0 m 

3(9) General 
Provisions 

(f) No home occupation shall create or become a public nuisance, particularly with regard to 
noise, traffic, emissions, parking or radio or television interference, . nor shall any open 
storage be permitted in conjunction with a home occupation except in accordance with 
the provisions of Subsection 3(15) hereof.  

  (h) Any open storage permitted in conjunction with a home occupation shall comply with the 
provisions of Section 3(15). 

 3(15) General 
Provisions 

(a) OPEN STORAGE REGULATIONS 

    (iv) No open storage area shall be visible from any street or from any adjacent lot, 
where such adjacent lot is located in a zone other than a Commercial Zone or an 
Industrial Zone, and to this end any open storage area shall be screened, wherever 
necessary in order to comply with this provision, by a planting strip containing an 
opaque fence, wall or other opaque barrier not less than 1.5 2.0 metres in height, 
except that this provision shall not apply to any open storage area accessory to an 
agricultural use or to the outside display and sale of goods and materials in 
conjunction with a permitted commercial use. 

 

  



 

 
Table of Proposed Changes  3 
Township of Puslinch Housekeeping Amendments  
February 18, 2016 Version    

Text additions  shown in red underlined text 
Text removals  shown in black strikeout text 

General Provisions 

# DESCRIPTION By-law Reference Proposed Amendment to By-law 
8 CONTRACTOR’S YARD 

NOT A HOME 
OCCUPATION 
• for clarification 

3(9) General 
Provisions 

(g) None of the following uses shall be considered home occupations except where such uses 
are specifically permitted herein:  

   (x) a contractor’s yard 

9 ONE MAIN BUILDING 
PER LOT 
• New provision to 

clarify no more than 
one main building 
per lot outside of 
identified zones 

• Renaming of 
provision title 

3 General 
Provisions 

(__) ONE MAIN BUILDING 
PER LOT 

No more than one main building shall be constructed on a lot 
except for the following: 

a) Permitted buildings within an agricultural, commercial, 
institutional, or industrial zone. 
 

 3(13) (13) LOTS WITH MORE 
THAN ONE USE OR 
ZONE 

(__)  ONE OR MORE PERMITTED USES PER LOT OR ZONE 

10 SEPTIC 
• Removal as septic is 

now under Building 
Code  

3(22)(b)  General 
Provisions 

(xvii) RESTRICTED USES 
Any use unable to obtain the approval of private water or sanitary treatment and 
disposal facilities from the Medical Officer or Health of the Wellington Dufferin Guelph 
Health Unit, owing either to the quantity of water required therefor which cannot be 
provided by a public water system, or to the quality of effluent produced thereby; 

  



 

 
Table of Proposed Changes  4 
Township of Puslinch Housekeeping Amendments  
February 18, 2016 Version    

Text additions  shown in red underlined text 
Text removals  shown in black strikeout text 

Preamble 

# DESCRIPTION By-law Reference Proposed Amendment to By-law 
11 PREAMBLE TO 

PERMITTED USES 
• for clarification 

5 A Zone (2) USES PERMITTED 
No person shall, within any A Zone, use any lot or erect, alter or use any building or 
structure  for any purpose except one or more of the following A uses, namely: 
No person shall use land or erect, alter or use any buildings or structures within an 
Agricultural (A) Zone, except in accordance with the following provisions: 

  6 HR Zone (2) USES PERMITTED 
No person shall, within any HR Zone, use any lot or erect, alter or use any building or 
structure  for any purpose except one or more of the following HR uses, namely: 
No person shall use land or erect, alter or use any buildings or structures within a Hamlet 
Residential (HR) Zone, except in accordance with the following provisions: 

  7 RR Zone (2) USES PERMITTED 
No person shall, within any RR Zone, use any lot or erect, alter or use any building or 
structure  for any purpose except one or more of the following RR uses, namely: 
No person shall use land or erect, alter or use any buildings or structures within a Resort 
Residential (RR) Zone, except in accordance with the following provisions: 

  7A MR Zone (2) USES PERMITTED 
No person shall, within any RR Zone, use any lot or erect, alter or use any building or 
structure  for any purpose except one or more of the following RR uses, namely: 
No person shall use land or erect, alter or use any buildings or structures within a 
Millcreek Residential Area (MR) Zone, except in accordance with the following provisions: 

  7B ML Zone (2) USES PERMITTED 
No person shall, within any RR Zone, use any lot or erect, alter or use any building or 
structure  for any purpose except one or more of the following RR uses, namely: 
No person shall use land or erect, alter or use any buildings or structures within a Mini 
Lakes (ML) Zone, except in accordance with the following provisions: 

  8 ER1 Zone (2) USES PERMITTED 
No person shall, within any ER1 Zone, use any lot or erect, alter or use any building or 
structure  for any purpose except one or more of the following ER1 uses, namely: 
No person shall use land or erect, alter or use any buildings or structures within an Estate 
Residential Type 1 (ER1) Zone, except in accordance with the following provisions: 
 

 



 

 
Table of Proposed Changes  5 
Township of Puslinch Housekeeping Amendments  
February 18, 2016 Version    

Text additions  shown in red underlined text 
Text removals  shown in black strikeout text 

Preamble 

# DESCRIPTION By-law Reference Proposed Amendment to By-law 
11 PREAMBLE TO 

PERMITTED USES 
• for clarification 

9 ER2 Zone (2) USES PERMITTED 
No person shall, within any ER2 Zone, use any lot or erect, alter or use any building or 
structure  for any purpose except one or more of the following ER2 uses, namely: 
No person shall use land or erect, alter or use any buildings or structures within an Estate 
Residential Type 2 (ER2) Zone, except in accordance with the following provisions: 

  10 RUR Zone (2) USES PERMITTED 
No person shall, within any RUR Zone, use any lot or erect, alter or use any building or 
structure  for any purpose except one or more of the following RUR uses, namely: 
No person shall use land or erect, alter or use any buildings or structures within a Rural 
Residential (RUR) Zone, except in accordance with the following provisions: 

  11 C1 Zone (2) USES PERMITTED 
No person shall, within any C1 Zone, use any lot or erect, alter or use any building or 
structure  for any purpose except one or more of the following C1 uses, namely: 
No person shall use land or erect, alter or use any buildings or structures within a Hamlet 
Commercial (C1) Zone, except in accordance with the following provisions: 

  12 C2 Zone (2) USES PERMITTED 
No person shall, within any C2 Zone, use any lot or erect, alter or use any building or 
structure  for any purpose except one or more of the following C2 uses, namely: 
No person shall use land or erect, alter or use any buildings or structures within a Highway 
Commercial (C2) Zone, except in accordance with the following provisions: 

  13 C3 Zone (2) USES PERMITTED 
No person shall, within any C3 Zone, use any lot or erect, alter or use any building or 
structure  for any purpose except one or more of the following C3 uses, namely: 
No person shall use land or erect, alter or use any buildings or structures within an 
Commercial (C3) Zone, except in accordance with the following provisions: 

  14 C4 Zone (2) USES PERMITTED 
No person shall, within any C4 Zone, use any lot or erect, alter or use any building or 
structure  for any purpose except one or more of the following C4 uses, namely: 
No person shall use land or erect, alter or use any buildings or structures within a Resort 
Commercial (C4) Zone, except in accordance with the following provisions: 
 

 



 

 
Table of Proposed Changes  6 
Township of Puslinch Housekeeping Amendments  
February 18, 2016 Version    

Text additions  shown in red underlined text 
Text removals  shown in black strikeout text 

Preamble 

# DESCRIPTION By-law Reference Proposed Amendment to By-law 
11 PREAMBLE TO 

PERMITTED USES 
• for clarification 

15 IND Zone (2) USES PERMITTED 
No person shall, within any IND Zone, use any lot or erect, alter or use any building or 
structure  for any purpose except one or more of the following IND uses, namely: 
No person shall use land or erect, alter or use any buildings or structures within an 
Industrial (IND) Zone, except in accordance with the following provisions: 

  16 EXI Zone (2) USES PERMITTED 
No person shall, within any EXI Zone, use any lot or erect, alter or use any building or 
structure  for any purpose except one or more of the following EXI uses, namely: 
No person shall use land or erect, alter or use any buildings or structures within an 
Extractive (EXI) Zone, except in accordance with the following provisions: 

  17 DI Zone (2) USES PERMITTED 
No person shall, within any DI Zone, use any lot or erect, alter or use any building or 
structure  for any purpose except one or more of the following DI uses, namely: 
No person shall use land or erect, alter or use any buildings or structures within a Disposal 
Industrial (DI) Zone, except in accordance with the following provisions: 

  18 I Zone (2) USES PERMITTED 
No person shall, within any I Zone, use any lot or erect, alter or use any building or 
structure  for any purpose except one or more of the following I uses, namely: 
No person shall use land or erect, alter or use any buildings or structures within an 
Institutional (I) Zone, except in accordance with the following provisions: 

  19 OS Zone (2) USES PERMITTED 
No person shall, within any OS Zone, use any lot or erect, alter or use any building or 
structure  for any purpose except one or more of the following OS uses, namely: 
No person shall use land or erect, alter or use any buildings or structures within an Open 
Space (OS) Zone, except in accordance with the following provisions: 

  20 NE Zone (2) USES PERMITTED 
No person shall, within any NE Zone, use any lot or erect, alter or use any building or 
structure  for any purpose except one or more of the following NE uses, namely: 
No person shall use land or erect, alter or use any buildings or structures within a Natural 
Environment (NE) Zone, except in accordance with the following provisions: 
 

 



 

 
Table of Proposed Changes  7 
Township of Puslinch Housekeeping Amendments  
February 18, 2016 Version    

Text additions  shown in red underlined text 
Text removals  shown in black strikeout text 

Other Provisions 

# DESCRIPTION By-law Reference Proposed Amendment to By-law 
12 FRONT YARD IN 

RESORT RESIDENTIAL 
ZONE 
• Front yard depth 

regulation needed 
 

7(3) Zone 
Requirements 

(c) FRONT YARD DEPTH (MINIMUM)                           7.5 m  

13 MINI LAKES 
• Add date of passing 

of By-law 9/13 
 

7B(5)(c) Site Front 
Yard (Minimum) 

Fourth sentence of paragraph: 
Notwithstanding the above, this By-law recognizes those accessory buildings or structures 
which existed prior to the date of passing of this By-law December 19, 2012 that are within the 
front yard or have a front yard less than 2.0 metres. 

  7B(5)(d) Site Side 
Yard (Minimum) 

Third sentence of paragraph: 
Notwithstanding the above, this By-law recognizes those accessory buildings or structures 
which existed prior to the date of passing of this By-law  December 19, 2012 that have a side 
yard less than 0.6 metres. 

  7B(5)(e) Site Rear 
Yard (Minimum)  

Third sentence of paragraph: 
Notwithstanding the above, this By-law recognizes those accessory buildings or structures 
which existed prior to the date of passing of this By-law  December 19, 2012 that have a rear 
yard less than 0.6 metres. 

 • for clarification of 
lot coverage 
 

7B(5)(h) Site 
Coverage (Maximum) 

The coverage of a site by all buildings and structures, including accessory buildings or 
structures, shall not exceed 35%, with the exception of open-sided carports and uncovered 
decks not exceeding 0.6 m in height. Notwithstanding the above, this By-law recognizes those 
buildings or structures including accessory buildings or structures, which existed prior to the 
date of passing of this By-law that have a coverage which exceeds 35%. 
 

  Notwithstanding any other provision of this By-law to the contrary, the coverage of all 
buildings or structures, including accessory buildings or structures, within each site or lot area 
shall not exceed 35%. Open sided carports and uncovered decks not exceeding 0.6 m in height 
are exempt from the site coverage maximum. 
 
Notwithstanding the above, this By-law recognizes those buildings or structures including 
accessory buildings or structures, which existed prior to December 19, 2012 that have a 
coverage which exceeds 35%. 



 

 
Table of Proposed Changes  8 
Township of Puslinch Housekeeping Amendments  
February 18, 2016 Version    

Text additions  shown in red underlined text 
Text removals  shown in black strikeout text 

Other Provisions 

# DESCRIPTION By-law Reference Proposed Amendment to By-law 
13 MINI LAKES 

• increase in 
recreation building 
from 500 square 
metres to 1,100 
square metres 

7B(6)(e) Building 
Floor Area 
(Maximum) 

laundromat                     100 square metres 
 variety store                    150 square metres 
 recreation building         500 square metres  1,100 square metres 

 

 

Minimum Distance Separation 

# DESCRIPTION By-law Reference Proposed Amendment to By-law 
14 MINIMUM DISTANCE 

SEPARATION 
• Provincial Policy 

requires inclusion of 
MDS in zoning by-
laws 

• Additional 
definitions have 
been added to 
support MDS 
implementation 

• Definitions are 
consistent with MDS 
Guidelines 

 

3(_)  General 
Provisions 

MINIMUM DISTANCE SEPARATION – MDS I AND II 

  (a) MDS I – NEW NON-FARM USES 
Notwithstanding any other yard or setback provisions of this By-law to the contrary, no 
residential, institutional, commercial, industrial or recreational use, located on a separate 
lot and permitted within the Agricultural (A) Zone or any other zone in which agricultural 
uses are permitted, shall be erected or altered unless it complies with the Minimum 
Distance Separation I (MDS I) setback from a livestock facility, calculated using the 
Formulas published by the Province of Ontario, as may be amended from time to time. 
The above provisions shall not apply to lots existing as of the date of passing of this By-
law, which are less than 4 hectares in area.  

   
(b) 

 
MDS II – NEW OR EXPANDING LIVESTOCK FACILITIES AND MANURE STORAGE FACILITIES 
Notwithstanding any other yard or setback provisions of this By-law to the contrary, no 
livestock facility or manure storage facility shall be erected or expanded unless it complies 
with the Minimum Distance Separation II (MDS II) setback, calculated using the Formulas 
published by the Province of Ontario, as may be amended from time to time. 
Notwithstanding the above, an existing manure storage system which does not meet MDS 
II requirements, may be replaced by a more compatible system which results in a 
reduction in the separation distance required, provided the livestock housing capacity is 
not increased.  

  



 

 
Table of Proposed Changes  9 
Township of Puslinch Housekeeping Amendments  
February 18, 2016 Version    

Text additions  shown in red underlined text 
Text removals  shown in black strikeout text 

Minimum Distance Separation 

# DESCRIPTION By-law Reference Proposed Amendment to By-law 
14 MINIMUM DISTANCE 

SEPARATION 
2(_) Definitions  “LIVESTOCK”, 

means farm animals kept for use, propagation, or for intended profit or gain and without 
limiting the generality of the foregoing includes:  dairy, beef and veal cattle, horses, swine, 
sheep, goats, mink rabbits and fowl. 
 

  2(_) Definitions  “LIVESTOCK BARNS”, 
means one or more permanent structures located on a lot which are intended for keeping 
or housing livestock, and are structurally sound and reasonably capable of housing 
livestock. 
 

  2(_) Definitions  “LIVESTOCK FACILITIES”,  
include all livestock barns and manure storages, as well as all unoccupied barns and 
unused manure storages on a lot. 

   
2(_) Definitions 

  
“MANURE STORAGE”, 
means a permanent storage which is structurally sound and reasonably capable of storing 
manure and which contain liquid manure (less than 18% dry matter) or solid manure 
(greater than or equal to 18% dry matter), and may exist in a variety of: locations, 
materials, coverings, configurations and elevations as identified in the Minimum Distance 
Separation Implementation Guidelines issued by the Province of Ontario. 
 

  Estate Residential 
8(3) Zone 
Requirements 

(i) SEPARATION DISTANCE FROM ADJACENT BARNS 
No single detached dwelling shall be located closer than 180 metres to the barns of an 
intensive  agricultural use on adjacent property. 

     
  Estate Residential 

9(3) Zone 
Requirements 

(i) SEPARATION DISTANCE FROM ADJACENT BARNS 
No single detached dwelling shall be located closer than 180 metres to the barns of an 
intensive  agricultural use on adjacent property. 

     
  Rural Residential 

10(3) Zone 
Requirements 

(i) SEPARATION DISTANCE FROM ADJACENT BARNS 
No single detached dwelling shall be located closer than 180 metres to the barns of an 
intensive  agricultural use on adjacent property. 

 



 

 
Table of Proposed Changes  10 
Township of Puslinch Housekeeping Amendments  
February 18, 2016 Version    

Text additions  shown in red underlined text 
Text removals  shown in black strikeout text 

Housing and Agricultural Regulations 

# DESCRIPTION By-law Reference Proposed Amendment to By-law 
15 DWELLING SIZE 

• Removal of 
minimum dwelling 
unit size as it is not 
necessary to 
regulate 

3(5)(e) Dwelling 
Unit Area (Minimal) 

(i) A dwelling unit consisting of a single dwelling – 90 square metres. 
(ii) Any other dwelling unit – 40 square metres for a bachelor dwelling unit plus an additional 

10 square metres for each bedroom. 

16 TEMPORARY 
RESIDENCE DURING 
CONSTRUCTION 
• New provision 

would remove the 
need for minor 
variance approval 
for temporary 
residence during 
construction 

 

3(__)  General 
Provisions 

TEMPORARY RESIDENCE DURING CONSTRUCTION 

  (a) Where a new single detached dwelling is being constructed on a vacant lot in an 
Agricultural (A) Zone, a mobile home may be located and used as a temporary residence 
on the same lot during the construction of a new residence for a period of time not to 
exceed 12 months after the building permit for the new dwelling is issued, provided all 
requirements of the Chief Building Official are satisfied, including the provision of 
adequate sewage disposal and water supply, and the posting of sufficient securities to 
ensure the removal of the temporary dwelling. 
 

  (b) Where a new single detached dwelling is being constructed to replace an existing single 
detached dwelling on the same lot in an Agricultural (A) Zone, the existing dwelling may 
continue to be used as a temporary residence during the construction of the new 
residence for a period of time not to exceed 12 months after the building permit for the 
new dwelling is issued, provided all requirements of the Chief Building Official are 
satisfied, including the provision of adequate sewage disposal and water supply, and the 
posting of sufficient securities to ensure the removal of the temporary dwelling. 
 

  



 

 
Table of Proposed Changes  11 
Township of Puslinch Housekeeping Amendments  
February 18, 2016 Version    

Text additions  shown in red underlined text 
Text removals  shown in black strikeout text 

Housing and Agricultural Regulations 

# DISCUSSION By-law Reference Proposed Amendment to By-law 
17 SECOND UNITS 

• definition expanded  
 

2(66)(iv) Definitions (a) “Accessory Dwelling 
Unit” 

Means a dwelling unit accessory to a permitted non-residential 
use or accessory to a permitted single detached dwelling in an 
Agricultural (A) Zone, Estate Residential Type 1 (ER1) Zone or 
Estate Residential Type 2 (ER2) Zone. 
 

 • allows dwelling units 
in basement or 
cellar 

3(5) Dwelling Units (c) LOCATION WITHIN 
BASEMENT OR CELLAR 

(i)   No dwelling unit shall be located in its entirety within a 
basement. 
(_)  No part of any dwelling unit shall be located within a 
basement of a non-residential building. 
(_)  No habitable room shall be located within a cellar unless it 
has a floor to ceiling height of at least 1.95 m. 

 
 • allows accessory 

apartments in A 
Zone in a single 
detached dwelling 

5(2) Permitted Uses 
Agricultural Zone 

An accessory apartment in a single detached dwelling on a lot in accordance with Section 5(3). 

  5(3)(e)  REDUCED 
LOT REQUIREMENTS 

 Add “an accessory apartment within a single detached dwelling on a lot in accordance 
with Section 3(1.1)” as a permitted use to Section 5(3)(e)(ii) and 5(3)(e)(v)2.a) 

     
 • provides regulations 

for accessory 
apartments in main 
dwelling 

5(3) Requirements 
Agricultural Zone 

(g)      ACCESSORY APARTMENTS 

   LOT AREA 
(MAXIMUM) 

0.4 ha 

    FLOOR AREA 
(MAXIMUM) 

45% of the Floor Area of the Principal Dwelling but no more than 
100 m2. In this context “Floor Area” means the total Floor Area of 
the Building measured from the exterior face of outside walls, or 
centre line of common walls, including Cellars and Basements 
with a floor to ceiling height of at least 1.95 m. Floor Area does 
not include stairs, landings, cold cellars, garages and carports. 

    SERVICING The accessory apartment must connect to the existing well and 
septic which services the main dwelling 

    ACCESSORY 
BUILDINGS 

Accessory apartments are not permitted in a detached building 
or structure 



 

 
Table of Proposed Changes  12 
Township of Puslinch Housekeeping Amendments  
February 18, 2016 Version    

Text additions  shown in red underlined text 
Text removals  shown in black strikeout text 

 
 

Housing and Agricultural Regulations 

# DISCUSSION By-law Reference Proposed Amendment to By-law 
17 SECOND UNITS 

• allows accessory 
apartment in ER1 
Zone 

8(2) Permitted Uses 
Estate Residential 
Type 1 Zone 
 

An accessory apartment in a single detached dwelling on a lot in accordance with Section 8(3). 

 • provides regulations 
for accessory 
apartment in main 
dwelling  

8(3) Requirements 
Estate Residential 
Type 1 Zone 

(j)      ACCESSORY APARTMENTS 

  LOT AREA (MINIMUM) 0.8 ha 
  FLOOR AREA 

(MAXIMUM) 
45% of the total Floor Area of the Principal Dwelling but no more 
than 100 m2  , with a maximum of 55 m2  above grade. In this 
context “Floor Area” means the total Floor Area of the Building 
measured from the exterior face of outside walls, or centre line 
of common walls, including Cellars and Basements with a floor to 
ceiling height of at least 1.95 m. Floor Area does not include 
stairs, landings, cold cellars, garages and carports. 

    SERVICING The accessory apartment must connect to the existing well and 
septic which services the main dwelling 

    ACCESSORY 
BUILDINGS 

Accessory apartments are not permitted in a detached building 
or structure 
 

 • allows accessory 
apartment in ER2 
Zone 

9(2) Permitted Uses 
Estate Residential 
Type 2 Zone 

An accessory apartment in a single detached dwelling on a lot in accordance with Section 9(3). 

 • provides regulations 
for accessory 
apartment in main 
dwelling 

9(3) Requirements 
Estate Residential 
Type 2 Zone 

(j)      ACCESSORY APARTMENTS 

  LOT AREA (MINIMUM) 0.4 ha 
 

 

  



 

 
Table of Proposed Changes  13 
Township of Puslinch Housekeeping Amendments  
February 18, 2016 Version    

Text additions  shown in red underlined text 
Text removals  shown in black strikeout text 

Housing and Agricultural Regulations 

# DISCUSSION By-law Reference Proposed Amendment to By-law 
17 SECOND UNITS 9(3) Requirements 

Estate Residential 
Type 2 Zone 

 FLOOR AREA 
(MAXIMUM) 

45% of the total Floor Area of the Principal Dwelling but no more 
than 100 m2  , with a maximum of 55 m2  above grade. In this 
context “Floor Area” means the total Floor Area of the Building 
measured from the exterior face of outside walls, or centre line 
of common walls, including Cellars and Basements with a floor to 
ceiling height of at least 1.95 m. Floor Area does not include 
stairs, landings, cold cellars, garages and carports. 

    SERVICING The accessory apartment must connect to the existing well and 
septic which services the main dwelling 

    ACCESSORY 
BUILDINGS 

Accessory apartments are not permitted in a detached building 
or structure 
 

18 FARM HELP 
DWELLINGS 
• new provisions 

would allow for a 
secondary dwelling 
accessory to a farm 
as-of-right if the 
farm is at least 35 ha 
in size 

5(2) Requirements 
Agricultural Zone 

(   )      SECONDARY DWELLING ACCESSORY TO A FARM 

 5(3) New subsection (   ) REGULATIONS FOR ESTABLISHMENT OF A SECONDARY DWELLING ACCESSORY TO A 
FARM 

   LOT AREA 
(MINIMUM) 

35.0 ha 

   LOCATION 
A second residential dwelling shall be located within the Farm Building Cluster. The 
second residential dwelling unit must be detached from the main residential dwelling, 
shall share a common driveway with the main farm residence, and shall be located 
within a 61.0 m radius of the main farm residence.  A second residential dwelling shall be 
provided with a potable water supply and adequate private sewage treatment facility. 

   TYPE OF RESIDENTIAL 
DWELLING 

A second residential dwelling unit may be traditionally 
constructed, prefabricated, modular or a mobile home. 

  2(73.1) Definitions  FARM 
Means a parcel of land, which the predominant activity is agricultural and includes 
associated buildings and structures such as residential dwellings, livestock facilities, farm 
implement buildings, silos, granaries and similar buildings and structures. 

 

  



 

 
Table of Proposed Changes  14 
Township of Puslinch Housekeeping Amendments  
February 18, 2016 Version    

Text additions  shown in red underlined text 
Text removals  shown in black strikeout text 

Housing and Agricultural Regulations 

# DISCUSSION By-law Reference Proposed Amendment to By-law 
18 FARM HELP 

DWELLINGS 
• addition and 

removal of 
definitions to 
support new 
regulations 

2(73.2) Definitions  FARM BUILDING 
CLUSTER 

Means the close grouping of the main buildings and structures 
on a farm contained within a limited area so that the 
remaining land is used for agriculture. Buildings and structures 
within the cluster shall share a common driveway. 

 2(65) Definitions (f) “Agricultural Service 
Dwelling” 

Means a temporary dwelling to provide sleeping 
accommodation and sanitary facilities for seasonal farm 
workers and such temporary dwelling may include facilities for 
cooking. 

 2(65) Definitions (f) “Secondary Dwelling 
Accessory to a Farm” 

Means a dwelling to provide for farm help. 

 

Bed and Breakfast Establishments 

# DISCUSSION By-law Reference Proposed Amendment to By-law 
19 BED & BREAKFAST 

ESTABLISHMENT 
• Use is currently not 

permitted in any 
zone 

• Would be permitted 
in the A Zone  

 

5(2) Permitted Uses 
Agricultural Zone 
 

An accessory bed and breakfast establishment in accordance with Section 3.(1.1). 

  2(23) Definitions (23) “BED AND BREAKFAST 
ESTABLISHMENT 
(B&B)” 

means a single detached residential dwelling in which the 
proprietor resides and supplies up to five furnished rooms 
and may serve breakfast on a temporary basis to overnight 
guests for monetary gain. It does not include a restaurant, 
hotel, motel, and  boarding  or rooming house or any other 
form of residential dwelling as defined by this By-law.  
 

  



 

 
Table of Proposed Changes  15 
Township of Puslinch Housekeeping Amendments  
February 18, 2016 Version    

Text additions  shown in red underlined text 
Text removals  shown in black strikeout text 

Bed and Breakfast Establishments 

# DISCUSSION By-law Reference Proposed Amendment to By-law 
19 BED & BREAKFAST 

ESTABLISHMENT 
• General provisions 

added to regulate 
number of rooms 
and other 
requirements 

3(1.1)  General 
Provisions 

ACCESSORY BED AND BREAKFAST ESTABLISHMENT (B&B) 

  Within the Agricultural (A) Zone, where bed and breakfast establishments are permitted, such 
uses shall be in accordance with the provisions for such zones and shall also comply with the 
following regulations:  

     
  (a) No more than 5 guest rooms shall be provided in a B&B; 
  (b) Any exterior stairways required for a B&B shall be located in a side or rear yard; and 
  (c) All new B&B establishments shall comply with the requirements of this Zoning By-law, 

other local by-laws, and any applicable provincial regulations such as the Ontario 
Building Code and Fire Code, as amended. 

 • Addition of B&B to 
list of uses not 
considered home 
occupations 

3(9) Home 
Occupations 

(g) None of the following 
uses shall be 
considered home 
occupations except 
where such uses are 
specifically permitted 
herein 

(xi)       Bed and Breakfast Establishment 

 • Parking 
requirements added 

3(16) General 
Provisions 

(b) PARKING SPACE REQUIREMENTS FOR RESIDENTIAL USES (MINIMA) 

    (iii) Bed and Breakfast 
Establishments 

1 parking space for each room or suite used for the 
purposes of lodging for the travelling public, in 
addition to the required parking for the dwelling 
unit 

 

Map Change 

# DISCUSSION By-law Reference Proposed Amendment to By-law 
20 MAP CHANGE 

 
Schedule ‘A’ A map change to remove kennel zoning (A-2) from the severed lands of B47/15 (Watson) 

located at Part Lot 10, Concession 4. 
 

 





































































































Puslinch Fire and Rescue Service 
Monthly Report 

March 2016

Emergency Preparedness Week 

Emergency Preparedness Week (EP Week) is an 
annual event that takes place each year during 
the first full week of May. This national event is 
coordinated by Public Safety Canada, in close 
collaboration with the provinces and territories 
and partners. 

Is Your Family Prepared”? 

Know the Risks 

• Severe weather
• Power failures
• Floods or drought
• Transportation accidents (both on

the road and rail)
• Water and energy emergencies
• Health emergencies

Make a Plan 

• Educate all the members of your
immediate family

• Your plan should be shared with
responsible neighbours and this
establishes your network of support
in the event of disasters

• Review your plan periodically to
ensure it is still a viable one

Get a Kit 

• You should be prepared to be stay
in place for 72 hours before
outside help arrives

• Build or buy a 72 hour home
emergency kit

• Don’t forget to consider your pets
and any considerations or
requirements for special need
family members

A basic kit should not be limited to but 
could include: 
Water (2 litres/person/day), flashlights, first 
aid kit, extra car keys, important personal 
papers, 
Non-perishable foods, toiletries, blankets, 
medications, playing cards and games, 
A can opener, flashlight & extra 
batteries…………. 

More information can be obtained at the 
Township of Puslinch website 
www.Puslinch.ca 
Or the County website, www.wellington.ca 
May 2-6 Puslinch Fire & Rescue Services 
will have information and a 72 hour kit on 
display at the Township Municipal Offices. 
.   

Significant Events/ Incidents/Trends

http://www.puslinch.ca/
http://www.wellington.ca/


 
 

 

 

 

 

 

Building Fire 3% 
Vehicle Fire 6% 

Grass Fires 5% 

MVC 
36% 

Medical 14% 

Illegal Burn 1% 

Mutual Aid 1% 

CO/Alarms 25% 

Other 
8% 

2016 YTD Emergency Calls 

Other Fire 1% 

REPORT MONTH: 2016 March 
 

  

Monthly 
Total 

2016 
 YTD 

2015 
YTD 

2014 
 YTD 

$ Loss 
Monthly $ Loss YTD 

FIRE: Structure 1 3 5 4 $2000 $3,123,000 
Vehicular 3 5 6 4 $0 $65,000 
Grass and 
Bush 2 4 0 0 

  Other 0 1 0 1 
  

  
Monthly 

2016 
 YTD 

2015 
YTD 

2014 
 YTD   

 Motor Vehicle Collisions 
 

11 32 41 64   
 Medical Assist 

 
3 12 19 13   

 Mutual Aid 
 

0 1 2 4   
 Carbon Monoxide 

 
4 9 4 2   

 Automatic Alarm 
 

8 13 11 10   
 Burning Complaints 

 
1 1 2 5   

 Incorrect Page 
 

0 0 0 3   
 Other 

 
7 7 3 5   

  
TOTALS:  

Monthly 
2016 
YTD 

2015 
YTD 

2014 
YTD   

 
 

40 88 93 115   
 Estimated Total Dollar 

Loss Due to Fire 
 

$0 $3,188,000 $68,500 $335,000   
 

        



Professional Development 

Activity     Month   Day 

Ladders     April   12 & 15 

Medical     April    19 & 20 

Tanker Operations    April    26 & 27 

Trench Rescue Awareness   May   3 & 4 

Incident Command    May   10 & 11 

Positive Pressure Attack   May   24 & 25 

Medical     May   31 

      June    01 

0
10
20
30
40
50
60
70 Puslinch Fire Calls - 2009-2016 

Calls/Mth

Prevention & Public Education 2016 March 
Activity:  Monthly Total 2016  YTD 

Inspections 1 6 
Water Tank Inspection 1 25 
Investigations 1 3 
Emergency Planning 0 2 
Public Education Volunteer 0 4 
Public Education Paid 3 5 
Meeting 3 5 
Home Safe Home Campaign 0 0 
   



 
 

 

Duff Church Luncheon 

 

Ontario Firefighters Association – Barn Fire Presentation 



 

            Tractor Trailer Rollover Highway 401 on ramp 

 

Motor Vehicle Fatality – County Road 32 and Laird Road 



 
Township of Puslinch 
Final Report to Members of Council 
April 20, 2016



 

Tel:  519 824 5410
Fax:  519 824 5497 
www.bdo.ca 

BDO Canada LLP
512 Woolwich Street 
Guelph ON N1H 3X7  Canada 
 

 

BDO Canada LLP, a Canadian limited liability partnership, is a member of BDO International Limited, a UK company limited by guarantee, and forms part of the 
international BDO network of independent member firms. 

 

 
 
April 20, 2016 
 
 
Members of Council 
Township of Puslinch 
7404 Wellington Road 34 
Guelph, Ontario 
N1H 6H9 
 
Dear Sir/Madam: 
 
We are pleased to present the results of our audit of the financial statements of the Township 
of Puslinch for the year ended December 31, 2015. The purpose of our report is to summarize 
certain aspects of the audit that we believe to be of interest to Council and should be read in 
conjunction with the draft consolidated financial statements and our draft audit report which is 
included as Appendix A.  
 
Our audit, and therefore this report, will not necessarily identify all matters that may be of 
interest to the Council in fulfilling its responsibilities. 
 
This report has been prepared solely for the use of the Council and should not be distributed 
without our prior consent. Consequently, we accept no responsibility to a third party that uses 
this communication. 
 
We wish to express our appreciation for the co-operation we received during the audit from the 
Municipality’s management and staff who have assisted us in carrying out our work. We look 
forward to meeting with you to discuss the contents of this report and any other matters that 
you consider appropriate.  
 
Yours truly, 
 
 
 
 
Sally J. Slumskie, CPA, CA 
Partner through a professional corporation 
BDO Canada LLP 



 

 
 

 

Page    3 

 

TABLE OF CONTENTS 

Status of the Audit 4 

Independence 4 

Materiality 4 

Audit Findings 5 

Fraud Discussion 6 

Internal Control Matters 6 

Management Letter 7 

BDO Publications 9 

Appendix A – Draft Financial Report 10 

Appendix B – Independence Update 12 

Appendix C – Unadjusted Differences 14 

Appendix D – Representation Letter 15 

Appendix E – BDO Publications 20 

  

 
 
 
 
  



 

 
 

 

Page    4 

 

STATUS OF THE AUDIT 
 
As of the date of this final report, we have substantially completed our audit of the 2015 financial 
statements pending the completion of the items highlighted below. These items will need to be 
completed prior to issuance of our audit report on the consolidated financial statements. 
 
COMPLETION OF AUDIT 

• Receipt of signed Management representation letter 

• Subsequent events review through to financial statement approval date 
 

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

• Approval of consolidated financial statements by the Members of Council 
 

We conducted our audit in accordance with Canadian generally accepted auditing standards. The 
objective of our audit was to obtain reasonable, not absolute, assurance about whether the 
consolidated financial statements are free from material misstatement. The scope of the work 
performed was substantially the same as that described in our Planning Letter to the Council 
dated February 16, 2016. 
 

INDEPENDENCE 
 
At the core of the provision of external audit services is the concept of independence. Canadian 
generally accepted auditing standards require us to communicate to Council at least annually, 
all relationships between BDO Canada LLP and its related entities and the Township and its 
related entities, that, in our professional judgment, may reasonably be thought to bear on our 
independence with respect to the audit of the Municipality. 
 
Our annual letter confirming our independence is provided in Appendix B. We know of no 
circumstances that would cause us to amend our previous communication to you in our planning 
letter. 
 

MATERIALITY 
 
Misstatements, including omitted financial statement disclosures, are considered to be material 
if they, individually or in aggregate, could reasonably be expected to influence the economic 
decisions of users taken on the basis of the financial statements.   
 
For the audit of the Township of Puslinch for the year ended December 31, 2015, final materiality 
was $120,000, based on 2% of budgeted total expenses. 

  



 

 
 

 

Page    5 

 

AUDIT FINDINGS 
 
As part of our ongoing communications with you, we are required to have a discussion on our 
views about significant qualitative aspects of the Township's accounting practices, including 
accounting policies, accounting estimates and financial statement disclosures. A summary of the 
key discussion points are as follows: 
 

Litigation Proceedings 

We have discussed with the municipality’s management and they have indicated that there 
are no uninsured claims outstanding against the municipality. 

 

Significant accounting policies, estimates and judgments 

Significant accounting policies have been disclosed in the financial statements. 

There have been no changes to the accounting policies in 2015. 

Significant accounting estimates include: 

Taxation revenue estimate 

Amounts have been estimated for taxable events that have occurred but have not yet been 
assessed. The estimate was based on trend analysis by year for supplemental taxation billings 
and write-offs for the last 3 years and knowledge of potential reassessments including the 
aggregate pits reassessment. 

Amortization estimate 

Amortization has been estimated based on the useful lives of the assets as determined by Council.  
There have been no changes in useful lives of assets. 

 
 
UNADJUSTED DIFFERENCES 
 
We have disclosed all significant unadjusted differences identified through the course of our 
audit engagement.  Each of these items has been discussed with Management.  

 

MANAGEMENT REPRESENTATIONS 
 
During the course of our audit, management made certain representations to us. These 
representations were verbal or written and therefore explicit, or they were implied through the 
financial statements. Management provided representations in response to specific queries from 
us, as well as unsolicited representations. Such representations were part of the evidence 
gathered by us to be able to draw reasonable conclusions on which to base our audit opinion. 
These representations were documented by including in the audit working papers memoranda of 
discussions with management and written representations received from management. 
 
A copy of the management representation letter which summarizes the representations we have 
requested from management has been presented in Appendix D.  



 

 
 

 

Page    6 

 

 
FRAUD DISCUSSION 
Canadian generally accepted auditing standards require us to discuss fraud risk with the Members 
of Council on an annual basis. As an update to the letter sent to the Members of Council during 
the planning of our audit, we have prepared the following comments: 
  

 
Required Discussion 

 
 

BDO Response 
 

Council Response 

Knowledge of actual, 
suspected or alleged 
fraud. 

 Currently, we are not aware of any 
actual, suspected or alleged fraud. 

 If you are aware of 
any   instances of 
actual, suspected or 
alleged fraud 
affecting the 
Municipality, please 
contact us directly. 

 
 
AUDITORS’ RESPONSIBILITIES FOR DETECTING FRAUD 
 
We are responsible for planning and performing the audit to obtain reasonable assurance that 
the consolidated financial statements are free of material misstatements, whether caused by 
error or fraud.  
 
The likelihood of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than the 
likelihood of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from error, because fraud may 
involve collusion as well as sophisticated and carefully organized schedules designed to conceal 
it. 
 
The scope of the work performed was substantially the same as that described in our Planning 
Letter to Council dated February 16, 2015. 
 

INTERNAL CONTROL MATTERS 
During the course of our audit, we performed the following procedures with respect to the 
Municipality’s internal control environment: 

• Documented operating systems to assess the design and implementation of control 
activities that were relevant to the audit. 

• Discussed and considered potential audit risks with management. 

• Test the operating effectiveness of controls in the payroll transaction stream. 

The results of these procedures were considered in determining, the extent and nature of 
substantive audit testing required. 
 
We are required to report to you in writing, significant deficiencies in internal control that we 
have identified during the audit. A significant deficiency is defined as a deficiency or combination 



 

 
 

 

Page    7 

 

We are required to report to you in writing, significant deficiencies in internal control that we 
have identified during the audit. A significant deficiency is defined as a deficiency or combination 
of deficiencies in internal control that, in the auditor's professional judgment, is of sufficient 
importance to merit the attention of those charged with governance.  
 
During the course of our audit, we did not become aware of any significant weaknesses in the 
design or implementation of internal controls. Since an audit is not designed to detect all 
weaknesses in internal controls, there may be weaknesses which our procedures did not detect. 
 

MANAGEMENT LETTER 
 
During the course of our audit, we identified matters which may be of interest to management. 
We have submitted to management a letter on internal controls and other matters that we feel 
should be brought to their attention. 
 
The comments and concerns expressed herein did not have a material effect on the Municipality’s 
financial statement and, as such, our opinion thereon was without reservation. However, in order 
for the Municipality to ensure the safeguarding of its assets and the accuracy of its records, we 
believe our comments and concerns should be taken into consideration by management. Our 
comments are not intended to reflect upon the honesty or competence of the Municipality’s 
employees. 
 
The key matters we have identified are discussed below: 
 

Title Matter Identified Year 
Identified

Action Taken 

Security and 
Grading 
Deposits 

Liabilities include significant older security 
and grading deposits.  Management and 
Council have adopted a policy to recognize 
deposits over 10 years old as revenue and to 
transfer the money to a reserve.  We 
recommend that management periodically 
review all deposits to determine the status.  

2014 Addressed in 
2015 

Review of 
Capital Asset 
Policy 

The current capital asset policy is very 
general and broad.  This may lead to 
incorrect classification of assets and 
inappropriate useful life estimates.  We 
recommend that the capital asset policy be 
reviewed to ensure that the correct useful 
lives are being attached to the different 
asset classes.  

2014 To be addressed 
in 2016 

Purchase 
Orders 

The municipality currently does not use a 
purchase order system.  We recommend that 
a purchase order system be implemented 
that requires all non-routine purchases to 
have a purchase order approved in advance. 

2014 Not yet 
addressed 



 

 
 

 

Page    8 

 

Procurement 
Policy 

The existing procurement policy allows 
purchasing up to $10,000 with limited 
authorization.  We recommend that the 
procurement policy be reviewed and lower 
threshold be considered. 

2014 To be addressed 
in 2016 

Invoice and 
Timesheet 
Sign offs 

A master authorization list for payroll and 
purchases indicating who is authorized to 
sign off on invoices and timesheets for 
approval does not exist. We recommend that 
a policy be implemented that contains a list 
of authorized individuals, as well as their 
levels of authorization. 

2014 Not yet 
addressed 

Lack of 
Segregation 
of Duties 
Over Cash 
Collection 

Segregation of duties is lacking surrounding 
cash handling. We recommend that receipts 
are issued for all transactions. 

2014 Addressed in 
2015 

Recreation 
Revenue 

Segregation of duties is lacking in the 
recreation revenue process. We recommend 
prenumbered contracts be put in place, so 
that any missing contracts can be identified.  
The facility booking module in Keystone can 
be used to track the recreation bookings 
instead of using an excel spreadsheet. 

2014 Addressed in 
2015 

Payroll Pay 
Frequency 

The Township currently pays employees on a 
weekly basis.  In order to improve 
efficiencies, we recommend implementing 
bi-weekly payroll for employees. 

2014 To be addressed 
in 2017 

Employee 
Timesheets 

Timesheets are not consistently completed 
and approved for all employees across the 
various departments. We recommend that a 
consistent timesheet policy be implemented 
across all departments in order to allow for 
consistency in regards to how timesheets are 
being completed and approved. 

2014 Not yet 
addressed 

Financial 
Reporting 

Currently, many financial reports are 
produced outside of the accounting system 
(Keystone) using excel.  We recommend that 
Keystone report generating capabilities be 
reviewed and implemented for items such as 
accounts payable and bank reconciliations. 

2014 Not yet 
addressed 

Asset 
Management 
Plan 

Capital asset management plans are 
becoming increasingly critical.  As a value 
added service, BDO has agreed to provide a 
"peer review" of your plan/process in the 
upcoming months. 

2014 Addressed in 
2015 

Tangible 
Capital 
Assets 

The capital asset module in Keystone is 
being used to track assets, which does not 
easily record disposals of assets or perform 
capital asset forecasting. It is recommended 
the Township look at other capital asset 
programs, including CityWide. 

2015 Not yet
addressed 



 

 
 

 

Page    9 

 

 

 
BDO PUBLICATIONS 
 
The municipality applies Public Sector Accounting Standards. We have included in Appendix E 
our PSAB Update publication which will provide you with details on recent changes to Public 
Sector Standards.  
 

• Public Sector Accounting Standards (PSAS) Update 2015



DRAFT

Independent Auditor's Report

To the Members of Council, Inhabitants and Ratepayers
of the Corporation of the Township of Puslinch

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the Corporation of the Township of
Puslinch, which comprise the statement of financial position as at December 31, 2015, and the
statements of operations and accumulated surplus, changes in net financial assets and cash
flows for the year then ended, and a summary of significant accounting policies and other
explanatory information.

Management's Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial
statements in accordance with Canadian public sector accounting standards, and for such
internal control as management determines is necessary to enable the preparation of financial
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor's Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit. We
conducted our audit in accordance with Canadian generally accepted auditing standards. Those
standards require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to
obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free from material
misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and
disclosures in the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's
judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor
considers internal control relevant to the municipality's preparation and fair presentation of the
financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the
municipality's internal control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of
accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by management,
as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our audit opinion.

2

KHall
Stamp



DRAFT

Opinion

In our opinion, the financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial
position of the Corporation of the Township of Puslinch as at December 31, 2015 and the results
of its operations, changes in net financial assets and cash flows for the year then ended in
accordance with Canadian public sector accounting standards.

Chartered Professional Accountants, Licensed Public Accountants

April 20, 2016
Orangeville, Ontario

3



 

Tel:  519 824 5410
Fax:  519 824 5497 
www.bdo.ca 

BDO Canada LLP
512 Woolwich Street 
Guelph ON N1H 3X7  Canada 
 

 

BDO Canada LLP, a Canadian limited liability partnership, is a member of BDO International Limited, a UK company limited by guarantee, and forms part of the 
international BDO network of independent member firms. 

 

 
 
April 20, 2016 
 
 
Members of Council 
Township of Puslinch 
7404 Wellington Road 34 
Guelph, Ontario 
N1H 6H9 
 
Dear Sir/Madam: 
 
We have been engaged to audit the financial statements of the Township of Puslinch for the year 
ended December 31, 2015. 
 
Canadian generally accepted auditing standards (GAAS) require that we communicate at least 
annually with you regarding all relationships between the Municipality and our Firm that, in our 
professional judgment, may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence. 
 
We are aware of the following relationships between the municipality and us that, in our 
professional judgment, may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence.  
 
We provided assistance in the preparation of the financial statements, including adjusting journal 
entries. These services created a self-review threat to our independence since we subsequently 
expressed an opinion on whether the financial statements presented fairly, in all material 
respects, the financial position, results of operations and cash flows of the organization in 
accordance with Canadian Public Sector Accounting Standards. 
 
We, therefore, required that the following safeguards be put in place related to the above: 

• Management created the source data for all the accounting entries; 

• Management reviewed advice and comments provided and undertook their own analysis 
considering the municipality’s circumstances and generally accepted accounting 
principles; 

• Management reviewed and approved all journal entries prepared by us, as well as 
changes to financial statement presentation and disclosure; and 

• Someone other than the preparer reviewed the proposed journal entries and financial 
statements. 

 

We hereby confirm that we are independent with respect to the Municipality within the meaning 
of the Rules of Professional Conduct of the Institute of Chartered Accountants of Ontario as of 
April 20, 2016. 
 

APPENDIX B 
Independence Update 



 

 
 

 

BDO Canada LLP, a Canadian limited liability partnership, is a member of BDO International Limited, a UK company limited by guarantee, and forms part of the 
international BDO network of independent member firms. 

 

This letter is intended solely for the use of the Council, Management and others within the 
Township and should not be used for any other purposes. 
 
Yours truly, 
 
 
 
 
Sally J. Slumskie, CPA, CA 
Partner through a professional corporation 
BDO Canada LLP 

 
 



 

 
 

 

 

APPENDIX C 
Unadjusted Differences 

 
SUMMARY OF UNADJUSTED DIFFERENCES 
 
The following is a summary of uncorrected misstatements noted during the course of our audit engagement: 

 
 Increase (Decrease) 

Assets Liabilities Equity Net Income 

Tax write-off calculation $ (13,334) $  $  $ (13,334) 

Facility scheduler final step not completed    (7,500)    7,500 

Total  (13,334)  (7,500)    (5,834) 

Effect of Prior Year’s Reversing Errors         

Total Unadjusted Differences  $ (13,334) $ (7,500) $ $ (5,834) 

 
 
 
 
 
 



Township of Puslinch
7404 Wellington Road 34
Guelph Ontario  N1H 6H9

April 20, 2016

BDO Canada LLP

Chartered Professional Accountants
77 Broadway
Orangeville, Ontario  L9W 1K1
Canada

Dear Sir/Madam:

This representation letter is provided in connection with your audit of the statement of financial
position as at December 31, 2015, and the statement of operations and accumulated surplus,
statement of changes in net financial assets and cash flows for the year then ended  of Township
of Puslinch for the purpose of expressing an opinion as to whether the financial statements
present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position as at December 31, 2015  and the
results of operations and cash flows for those dates in accordance with Canadian public sector
accounting standards.

We confirm that:

Financial Statements

1. We have fulfilled our responsibilities, as set out in the terms of the audit engagement dated
January 21, 2015, for the preparation of the financial statements in accordance with
Canadian public sector accounting standards; in particular the financial statements are
fairly presented in accordance therewith. 

2. Significant assumptions used by us in making accounting estimates, including those
measured at fair value are reasonable.

3. Related party relationships and transactions have been appropriately accounted for and
disclosed in accordance with the requirements of Canadian public sector accounting
standards.

4. All events subsequent to the date of the financial statements and for which Canadian public

1

KHall
Stamp



sector accounting standards require adjustment or disclosure have been adjusted or
disclosed.

5. The financial statements of the municipality use appropriate accounting policies that have
been properly disclosed and consistently applied.

Information Provided

6. We have provided you with: 

- access to all information of which we are aware that is relevant to the preparation of
the financial statements, such as records, documentation and other matters;

- additional information that you have requested from us for the purpose of the audit; and

- unrestricted access to persons within the entity from whom you determined it necessary
to obtain audit evidence.

7. We are responsible for the design, implementation and maintenance of internal controls to
prevent, detect and correct fraud and error, and have communicated to you all deficiencies
in internal control of which we are aware.

8. The minute books of the municipality are a complete record of all meetings and resolutions
of Council throughout the year and to the present date. 

9. We have disclosed to you all significant matters contained in the minutes of all meetings
and resolutions of Council throughout the year and to the present date.    

10. All transactions have been recorded in the accounting records and are reflected in the
financial statements.

11. We have disclosed to you all known instances of non-compliance or suspected non-
compliance with laws and regulations whose effects should be considered when preparing
financial statements.

12. We have identified to you:

- guarantees;

- indemnifications against damages, liabilities, costs, charges or expenses suffered or
incurred by officers or directors as a result of their service, and/or by any subsidiaries;
and

- non-monetary transactions and transactions for no consideration.

13. We have disclosed to you the identity of the entity's related parties and the related party
relationships and transactions of which we are aware.   

2



14. We are aware of the environmental laws and regulations that impact our municipality and
we are in compliance. There are no known environmental liabilities or contingencies that
have not been accrued for or disclosed in the financial statements. 

Fraud and Error

15. We have disclosed to you the results of our assessment of the risk that the financial
statements may be materially misstated as a result of fraud, and have determined such risk
to be low.

16. We have disclosed to you all information in relation to fraud or suspected fraud that we are
aware of and that affects the entity and involves:

- management;

- employees who have significant roles in internal control; or

- others where the fraud could have a material effect on the financial statements.

17. We have disclosed to you all information in relation to allegations of fraud, or suspected
fraud, affecting the entity’s financial statements communicated by employees, former
employees, analysts, regulators, or others.

18. We have reviewed and approved all journal entries recommended by the auditors during the
audit.

19. The effects of unadjusted misstatements are immaterial, both individually and in the
aggregate, to the financial statements taken as a whole. A list of the uncorrected
misstatements is attached to the representation letter. 

Existence, Completeness and Valuation of Specific Financial Statement Balances

20. All assets, wherever located, to which the municipality had satisfactory title at 
the year end, have been fairly stated and recorded in the financial statements. There are
no liens or encumbrances on the municipality's assets. 

21. All financial instruments have been appropriately recognized and measured in accordance
with Canadian public sector accounting standards. Significant assumptions used in arriving
at fair value of financial instruments are reasonable and appropriate in the circumstances.

22. Where the value of any asset has been impaired, an appropriate provision has been made in
the financial statements or has otherwise been disclosed to you.

3



General Representations

23. The nature of all material uncertainties have been appropriately measured and disclosed in
the financial statements, including all estimates where it is reasonably possible that the
estimate will change in the near term and the effect of the change could be material to the
financial statements.

24. There were no direct contingencies or provisions (including those associated with
guarantees or indemnification provisions), unusual contractual obligations nor any
substantial commitments, whether oral or written, other than in the ordinary course of
business, which would materially affect the financial statements or financial position of the
municipality, except as disclosed in the financial statements.

25. We have informed you of all outstanding and possible claims, whether or not they have
been discussed with legal counsel. Since there are no outstanding or possible claims, no
disclosure is required in the financial statements. 

26. We confirm that there are no derivatives or off-balance sheet financial instruments held at 
year end that have not been properly recorded or disclosed in the financial statements. 

27. We have disclosed to you all significant customers and/or suppliers of the municipality who
individually represent a significant volume of business with the municipality. We are of the
opinion that the volume of business (sales, services, purchases, borrowing and lending) done
by the municipality with any one party is not of sufficient magnitude that discontinuance
would have a material negative effect on the ongoing operations of the municipality.

28. There have been no plans or intentions that may materially affect the carrying value or
classification of assets and liabilities.

29. We confirm that operating segments are appropriately identified and disclosed in
accordance with Canadian public sector accounting standards.    

30. No significant matters, other than those disclosed in the financial statements, have arisen
that would require a restatement of the comparative financial statements.

31 We have disclosed to you our assessment of the entity's ability to continue operating as a
going concern. Our assessment and plans for the future are as follows: 

The municipality will be able to continue as a going concern as it will have cash flows from
the tax revenues generated and through the budget process always set costs at a level of
revenue the municipality expects to generate.

4



Yours truly,

Signature Position

Signature Position

5



PUBLIC SECTOR 
ACCOUNTING 
STANDARDS (PSAS) 
UPDATE 2015
Introduction

During 2015, the Public Sector Accounting Board (PSAB or the “Board”) made several changes to the CPA Canada Public Sector Accounting 
Handbook (PSA Handbook) including the issuance of six new Handbook Sections. The Board also undertook new projects and advanced the 
progress of existing projects that propose future changes to the PSA Handbook. These current and proposed changes will be discussed in this 
publication.

Standards Effective April 1, 2014

Liability for Contaminated Sites

Section PS 3260, Liability for Contaminated Sites, became effective for years beginning on or after April 1, 2014. That means entities with 
December 31, 2015 year ends will be applying it for the first time to their upcoming year end financial statements. This standard provides 
guidance on what is considered contamination, when an entity becomes responsible for contamination, when environmental obligations 
meet the definition of a liability, how environmental liabilities should be measured given the uncertainties and the disclosures required 
for the financial statements. Previous PSAS Update publications have discussed this standard so it will not be covered again here in detail. 
However, for a comprehensive look at the requirements of this standard and how to apply it, please refer to our publication “Contaminated 
Sites — A Practical Approach to Section PS 3260.” 

Standards Effective January 1, 2017

Amendments to the Introduction

The PSA Handbook was originally written primarily to address the financial reporting needs of governments in Canada. However, now that 
government organizations who previously followed Part V of the CPA Handbook — Accounting have adopted the PSA Handbook, their needs 
must be considered as well. To address this, the Board began a project to update terminology in the PSA Handbook to clarify standards and 
guidance that is applicable to public sector entities. As part of this project, the Board amended the Introduction to Public Sector Accounting 
Standards to clarify the applicability of the PSA Handbook for various public sector entities. 

The main amendments to this Section are:

•	 The introduction of the term “public sector entity“, which is defined as a government, government component, government organization 
or government partnership.

•	 The introduction of the term “government component”, which is defined as an integral part of a government, such as a department, 
ministry or fund. It is not a separate entity with the power to contract in its own name and that can sue and be sued.

•	 The definition of a government organization has been amended to state that it is any organization controlled by a government that is a 
separate entity with the power to contract in its own name and that can sue and be sued. 

•	 Definitions for each type of government organization and government partnership are now included in this Section. Previously these 
definitions were scattered throughout various Sections of the PSA Handbook. 

october 2015
www.BDO.CA

AssurAnce And Accounting

http://www.bdo.ca/en/Library/Services/assurance-and-accounting/Documents/Publications/Contaminated-Sites-A-Practical-Approach-to-Section-PS-3260.pdf
http://www.bdo.ca/en/Library/Services/assurance-and-accounting/Documents/Publications/Contaminated-Sites-A-Practical-Approach-to-Section-PS-3260.pdf
KHall
Stamp



2Public Sector Accounting StAndArdS (PSAS) uPdAte 2015

•	 The definition of each type of government organization has been amended to clarify that they are separate legal entities that have the 
power to contract in their own name and that can sue and be sued. 

•	 The definition of a government partnership has also been amended to clarify that it is not a government organization. 

•	 Guidance has been added to explain what GAAP is to be followed by government components and government partnerships as this 
guidance was not previously provided in the PSA Handbook:

•	 Government components follow the guidance for governments in the PSA Handbook.
•	 Government partnerships between two or more public sector entities normally follow the standards for governments in the PSA 

Handbook. However, when these standards do not meet the needs of the users of their financial statements, the government 
partnership considers following International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) in Part I of the CPA Canada Handbook.

•	 Government business partnerships between two or more public sector entities follow IFRS. 
•	 Government partnerships or government business partnerships with one or more private sector partners follow the GAAP that their 

partners determine is most appropriate for the partnership.
Since the amendments to this Section introduced a definition of government components as well as guidance on what GAAP government 
partnerships and government business partnerships should be following, this may result in some government components, government 
partnerships and government business partnerships needing to adopt a different GAAP from what they are currently following. As a result, 
specific guidance on effective dates and transition has been provided:

•	 Government components and government partnerships that adopt the PSA Handbook should do so for fiscal periods beginning on or 
after January 1, 2017. Earlier adoption is permitted. The adoption of these standards should be accounted for by retroactive application 
with restatement of prior periods in accordance with Section PS 2125, First-time Adoption.

•	 Government partnerships and government business partnerships that determine standards applicable to publicly accountable enterprises 
(i.e. International Financial Reporting Standards) are most appropriate for their partnership should do so for fiscal periods beginning on or 
after January 1, 2017. Earlier adoption is permitted. 

Government components, government partnerships and government business partnerships that expect to change their basis of accounting 
should disclose this fact in their financial statements in the periods preceding the period the change becomes effective.

Standards Effective April 1, 2017

Related Party Disclosures 

During 2015, the Board issued two new Sections PS 2200, Related Party Disclosures, and PS 3420, Inter-entity Transactions. Prior the issuance 
of these two Sections the PSA Handbook did not include a standard dealing with related party transactions. The reason two standards 
were developed instead of only one is because related party transactions can occur with individuals and entities both inside and outside 
of a government’s reporting entity. However, the Board believes that generally issues of recognition and measurement would not arise for 
related party transactions that are not part of the same government reporting entity. These types of related party transactions would be 
recognized at the exchange amount according to their substance and the individual accounting standards applied for reporting purposes. 
Disclosures about these related party transactions would be sufficient for users to understand the effect of those transactions on an entity’s 
financial position and changes in financial position. So these types of transactions are excluded from new Section PS 3420, which provides 
recognition and measurement guidance for related party transactions that occur between entities within the government’s reporting entity. 
New Section PS 2200 then provides guidance on disclosure requirements for related party transactions.

Section PS 2200 defines a related party and a related party transaction as follows:

Related party - A related party exists when one party has the ability to exercise control or shared control over the other. Two or 
more parties are related when they are subject to common control or shared control. Related parties also include key management 
personnel and close family members. 

Related party transaction - A transfer of economic resources or obligations between related parties, or the provision of services by 
one party to a related party. These transfers are related party transactions whether or not there is an exchange of considerations or 
transactions have been given accounting recognition. The parties to the transaction are related prior to the transaction. When the 
relationship arises as a result of the transaction, the transaction is not one between related parties. 

The standard does not require disclosure of key management personnel compensation arrangements, expense allowances or other similar 
payments routinely paid in exchange for services rendered. Additionally the standard does not require disclosure of all related party 
transactions. Instead, disclosure is generally only required when:



3Public Sector Accounting StAndArdS (PSAS) uPdAte 2015

•	 A transaction occurs between related parties at a value different from that which would have been arrived at if the parties were 
unrelated; and 

•	 Transactions and events between related parties have or could have a material financial effect on the financial statements.

Determining which items to disclose is based on an assessment of the terms and conditions underlying the transactions, the financial 
materiality of the transactions, relevance of the information to the decisions of users, and the need for the information to enable users’ 
understanding of the financial statements and for making comparisons to other entities. When it is determined that information about 
related party transactions needs to be disclosed in the financial statements, the disclosure would include the following, aggregating items 
that are similar in nature: 

•	 Information about the nature of the relationship with related parties involved in related party transactions; 

•	 The types of related party transactions that have been recognized; 

•	 The amounts of the transactions recognized classified by financial statement category; 

•	 The basis of measurement used; 

•	 The amount of outstanding balances and the terms and conditions attached to them; 

•	 Contractual obligations with related parties, separate from other contractual obligations; 

•	 Contingent liabilities involving related parties, separate from other contingent liabilities; and 

•	 The types of related party transactions that have occurred for which no amount has been recognized. 

Section PS 2200 is effective for fiscal years beginning on or after April 1, 2017, but earlier adoption is permitted. This Section must be applied 
prospectively. 

Inter-entity Transactions

As previously mentioned, related Section PS 3420 provides guidance on how to account for and report transactions between public sector 
entities that comprise a government’s reporting entity from the perspective of both the provider and the recipient. 

Under this Section, the transfer of assets or liabilities is recognized by both the provider and the recipient. The provider removes the assets 
or liabilities from its financial statements and any difference between the net proceeds received and the carrying amounts transferred is 
accounted for as a revenue or expense in the statement of operations. The recipient recognizes assets or liabilities in its financial statements 
when the items satisfy the definition and recognition criteria for an asset and liability in Section PS 1000, Financial Statement Concepts. 

When there is a policy of cost allocation and recovery for the provision of goods and services, the provider reports all revenues and expenses 
on a gross basis and the recipient reports expenses on a gross basis. 

When there is no policy for allocating costs, the recipient may choose to recognize these costs when they would otherwise have been 
purchased and a reasonable estimate of the amount involved can be made. In this case, the recipient recognizes these items as revenues and 
expenses. 

Under Section PS 3420 transactions are measured at the carrying amount, other than in the following situations:

Situation Then Measured At:

Transactions are undertaken on similar terms and conditions 
to those adopted if the entities were dealing at arm’s length 

Exchange amount 

Assets or liabilities are transferred for nominal or no 
consideration 

Provider – measures at the carrying amount

Recipient – measures at the carrying amount or fair value

Transactions are allocated costs and recoveries Exchange amount 

Transactions are unallocated costs The carrying amount, fair value or other amount dictated by 
policy, accountability structure or budget practice 

Inter-entity transactions are disclosed in accordance with the requirements of Section PS 2200.

Section PS 3420 is effective for fiscal years beginning on or after April 1, 2017, but earlier adoption is permitted. If application of 
Section PS 3420 results in a change of accounting policy Section PS 2120, Accounting Changes, applies. Per paragraph PS 2120.13, when 
a change in an accounting policy is made to conform to a new Public Sector Accounting Standard the new standard may be applied 
retroactively or prospectively.



4Public Sector Accounting StAndArdS (PSAS) uPdAte 2015

Assets

Section PS 3210, Assets, was issued during 2015 and provides additional guidance on the definition of assets. Assets are defined as economic 
resources controlled by a government as a result of past transactions or events and from which future economic benefits are expected to be 
obtained. 

This new Section provides additional guidance on what is meant by economic resources, control, past transactions or events, and future 
economic benefits. This guidance will be helpful in determining whether an item meets the definition of an asset. It may also result in public 
sector entities reassessing whether items meet the definition of an asset upon adoption of this Section.

Section PS 3210 requires public sector entities to disclose major categories of assets that are not recognized in their financial statements 
(i.e. intangibles, crown lands, heritage assets, etc.).

This Section is effective for fiscal years beginning on or after April 1, 2017, but earlier adoption is permitted. 

Contingent Assets

During 2015, Section PS 3320, Contingent Assets, was issued in the PSA Handbook. Prior to this the PSA Handbook included a definition of 
contingent liabilities, but did not include a definition of contingent assets. This new Section provides a definition of contingent assets as:

Possible assets arising from existing conditions or situations involving uncertainty. That uncertainty will ultimately be 
resolved when one or more future events not wholly within the public sector entity’s control occurs or fails to occur. 
Resolution of the uncertainty will confirm the existence or non-existence of an asset. 

Section PS 3320 requires disclosure of contingent assets in the financial statements when the occurrence of a confirming future event is 
likely.

This new Section may result in public sector entities performing a reassessment of items that meet the definition of a contingent asset and 
additional information being disclosed upon adoption of this Section. 

Section PS 3320 is effective for fiscal years beginning on or after April 1, 2017, but earlier adoption is permitted. 

Contractual Rights

Before Section 3380, Contractual Rights, was issued in 2015 the PSA Handbook included a definition of contractual obligations, but did not 
define contractual rights. This new Section provides a definition of contractual rights as:

Rights to economic resources arising from contracts or agreements that will result in both an asset and revenue in  
the future. 

This Section also requires that information about a public sector entity’s contractual rights be disclosed in the financial statements. This 
disclosure would include a description about the nature, extent and timing of the contractual rights. Since an entity may have many 
contractual rights, professional judgment will be required in determining what to disclose. Factors to consider include, but are not limited to, 
contractual rights to revenue that is abnormal in relation to the financial position or usual business operations of the entity and contractual 
rights that will govern the level of a certain type of revenue for a considerable period into the future.

This Section is effective for fiscal years beginning on or after April 1, 2017, but earlier adoption is permitted. 

Standards Effective April 1, 2018

Restructurings

Section PS 3430, Restructuring Transactions, was issued in 2015. This new Section provides guidance on accounting for restructuring 
transactions. Previously, no such guidance existed in the PSA Handbook. As public sector entities are entering into these types of 
transactions more often, guidance was needed to ensure these transactions are accounted for on a consistent basis. 

Restructuring activities include, but are not limited to:

•	 Amalgamations of entities or operations within the government reporting entity; 

•	 The amalgamation of local governments; 

•	 Annexation or boundary alteration between neighbouring local governments; 

•	 Transfers of operations or programs from one entity to another; and 

•	 Shared service arrangements entered into by local governments in a region.  



5Public Sector Accounting StAndArdS (PSAS) uPdAte 2015

Section PS 3430 provides a definition of a restructuring transaction as:

A transfer of an integrated set of assets and / or liabilities, together with related program or operating responsibilities 
without consideration based primarily on the fair value of the individual assets and liabilities transferred. 

The key characteristics of restructuring transactions are:

•	 Their non-purchase nature;

•	 Transfers of an integrated set of assets and/or liabilities that are not random or unrelated; and

•	 Transfers of program or operating responsibilities related to the assets and liabilities transferred.

The key distinction between a restructuring transaction and an acquisition is that a restructuring transaction’s non-purchase nature is 
reflected by the absence of consideration that is primarily based on the fair value of the individual assets and liabilities transferred.

Under Section PS 3430 the individual assets and liabilities transferred in a restructuring transaction would be derecognized by the transferor 
and recognized by the recipient at their carrying amounts with applicable adjustments. The increase in net assets or net liabilities resulting 
from recognition and derecognition of individual assets and liabilities received from all transferors, and transferred to all recipients in a 
restructuring transaction would be recognized as revenue or as an expense. In addition: 

•	 Any costs incurred related to the restructuring would be expensed when incurred; 

•	 The accounting policies and circumstances of the recipient at the restructuring date would determine the initial classification of the 
individual assets and liabilities received in the restructuring transaction; 

•	 The net effect of a restructuring transaction is presented as a separate revenue or expense item in the statement of operations;

•	 Financial position and results of operations prior to the restructuring date would not be restated; and 

•	 A transferor and a recipient need to disclose sufficient information to enable financial statement users to assess the nature and financial 
effects of a restructuring transaction on their financial position and operations. Disclosure of information about the transferred assets, 
liabilities and related operations prior to restructuring date is encouraged but not required. 

This Section only applies to new restructuring transactions that occur in fiscal years beginning on or after April 1, 2018. Earlier adoption is 
permitted.

Standards Effective April 1, 2019

Financial Instruments, Foreign Currency, Financial Statement Presentation and Portfolio Investments

During 2015, the Board delayed the effective date for Sections PS 3450, Financial Instruments, and PS 2601, Foreign Currency Translation. 
These Sections are now applicable for fiscal years beginning on or after April 1, 2019, for public sector entities that did not previously apply 
the CPA Canada Handbook – Accounting prior to adopting the PSA Handbook. Therefore, public sector entities that meet this criteria, such 
as governments, will apply these Sections for the first time for their March 31, 2020 year ends (for governments with calendar year ends, 
December 31, 2020 will be the first year end affected). At the same time public sector entities adopt these two Sections, they must also 
adopt Section PS 1201, Financial Statement Presentation, Section PS 3041, Portfolio Investments, and the effective interest method outlined 
in paragraph .25 of Section PS 3050, Loans Receivable. For more details on these standards please refer to our publication “A Guide to 
Accounting for Financial Instruments in the Public Sector”. 

Projects on the Go

The Board currently has a number of projects in progress which propose future changes to the PSA Handbook. The following provides a brief 
discussion of these projects. 

Statement of Principles — Revenue 

Currently, the PSA Handbook does not include a standard on overall revenue recognition. As a result, many public sector entities need to 
consult other sources of GAAP when accounting for types of revenues for which the PSA Handbook does not provide guidance. The Board 
believes guidance in this area is needed as there is diversity in practice. As a result, a new revenue standard was proposed in a Statement of 
Principles issued August 2013. This proposed standard would focus on two main areas of revenue: 

•	 Exchange transactions; and

•	 Unilateral (non-exchange) transactions. 

The proposed standard would define exchange transactions as transactions where goods or services are provided for consideration. These 
transactions create performance obligations for a public sector entity arising directly from a payment or promise of consideration by a payor. 

http://www.bdo.ca/en/Library/Services/assurance-and-accounting/Documents/Publications/A-Guide-to-Accounting-for-Financial-Instruments-in-the-Public-Sector.pdf
http://www.bdo.ca/en/Library/Services/assurance-and-accounting/Documents/Publications/A-Guide-to-Accounting-for-Financial-Instruments-in-the-Public-Sector.pdf


6Public Sector Accounting StAndArdS (PSAS) uPdAte 2015

A performance obligation is defined as an enforceable promise to provide goods or services to a payor as a result of exchange transactions. 

Revenue from an exchange transaction would be recognized as the public sector entity satisfies the performance obligation. An exchange 
transaction would be evaluated to identify goods and services that are distinct and would be accounted for as a separate performance 
obligation. An example of an exchange transaction is a user fee charged by a municipality for providing water services.  

According to the proposed definition, unilateral revenues increase the economic resources of a public sector entity without a direct transfer 
of economic resources to the payor. The right to the economic resources is attributable to legislation grounded on a constitutional authority, 
or delegated constitutional authority, and an event entitling the public sector entity to recognize revenue. 

Unilateral revenues are unique to the public sector as the authority to enact legislation is unique to governments. Unilateral revenues do 
not necessarily entitle the payor to a specific public service or benefit. Instead, the public sector entity’s right to the revenue results from its 
constitutional powers that allow it to impose the unilateral revenue. A public sector entity would recognize unilateral revenues when it has 
authority to the revenues and can identify a past event that gives it a right to those revenues. Tax revenue collected by a municipality is an 
example of unilateral revenue.

As a result of responses received on this Statement of Principles the Board is currently undertaking further research on these issues and the 
project timeline has been extended. An Exposure Draft is expected to be issued in the third quarter of 2016.

Statement of Principles — Retirement Obligations

The PSA Handbook does not include a standard on retirement obligations, and as a result there are currently inconsistencies in how public 
sector entities account for these obligations. In August of 2014, the Board issued a Statement of Principles which proposes exposing a new 
Section on retirement obligations associated with tangible capital assets controlled by a public sector entity. 

Under the proposed standard, retirement obligations associated with tangible capital assets can result from legal, constructive and equitable 
obligations. Retirement obligations associated with tangible capital assets include post-retirement operation, maintenance and monitoring 
costs. 

Recognition of retirement costs would be accomplished by increasing the carrying amount of the related tangible capital asset or a 
component thereof and then expensing this amount in a rational and systematic manner. A present value technique may be the best 
method of estimating the liability. Depending on the nature of the re-measurement and whether the asset remains in productive use, 
subsequent re-measurement of the liability could result in either a change in the carrying amount of the related tangible capital asset or a 
component thereof, or an expense. 

The issuance of this standard would result in complete and consistent reporting of existing retirement obligations associated with controlled 
tangible capital assets in public sector entities. 

The Board is currently deliberating comments received on the Statement of Principles and an Exposure Draft is expected to be issued in the 
second quarter of 2016.

Statement of Principles — Improvements to Not-for-Profit Standards

The Accounting Standards Board (AcSB) which develops accounting standards for private sector not-for-profit organizations (NPOs) and 
PSAB which establishes accounting standards for public sector entities, including government NPOs, have been working together to improve 
not-for-profit standards to better meet the needs of users. 

During 2015, the AcSB approved the creation of a “Not-for-profit Organizations Advisory Committee” to assist with its standards 
improvements initiatives, as well as to provide input on other standard-setting matters of interest to private sector NPOs. In addition, the 
AcSB approved three projects relating to private sector NPO standards.

During 2015, PSAB approved an Exposure Draft proposing withdrawal of Section PS 4260, Disclosure of Related Party Transactions by Not-
for-Profit Organizations, and amendments to the transitional provisions in Section PS 2200, Related Party Disclosures, for NPOs applying 
the PSA Handbook including the PS 4200 series of Sections. PSAB also discussed a project plan to improve standards for not-for-profit 
organizations.

As these projects could have a significant impact on accounting for public sector NPOs we would encourage NPOs to watch them closely. 
The latest information on these projects can be found on the Financial Reporting and Assurance Standards Canada (FRAS Canada) website or 
by clicking here. 

Exposure Draft — Financial Instruments

The Board released an Exposure Draft in October 2014 that proposed clarifications to the scope and added some new guidance and 
transitional provisions to Section PS 3450, Financial Instruments. The amendments to Section PS 3450 were originally expected to be 
released in the Handbook in the fall of 2015; however, due to the implementation date for Section PS 3450 being delayed to April 1, 2019 
the Board has deferred consideration of the amendments proposed in the Exposure Draft until a later date.

http://www.frascanada.ca/standards-for-not-for-profit-organizations/projects/active/item56204.aspx


7Public Sector Accounting StAndArdS (PSAS) uPdAte 2015

The information in this publication is current as of October 15, 2015.
This publication has been carefully prepared, but it has been written in general terms and should be seen as broad guidance only. The publication cannot be relied upon to cover specific situations and 
you should not act, or refrain from acting, upon the information contained therein without obtaining specific professional advice. Please contact BDO Canada LLP to discuss these matters in the context 
of your particular circumstances. BDO Canada LLP, its partners, employees and agents do not accept or assume any liability or duty of care for any loss arising from any action taken or not taken by 
anyone in reliance on the information in this publication or for any decision based on it.
BDO Canada LLP, a Canadian limited liability partnership, is a member of BDO International Limited, a UK company limited by guarantee, and forms part of the international BDO network of 
independent member firms. BDO is the brand name for the BDO network and for each of the BDO Member Firms.

Post Implementation Review — Government Transfers

The Board undertook a post-implementation review of Section PS 3410, Government Transfers, in November 2014. The purpose of this 
review is to the help the Board assess any implementation challenges encountered by stakeholders in applying Section PS 3410 and the 
nature, extent and cause of any ongoing issues. This is the first post-implementation review undertaken by PSAB. Such reviews consider 
whether the standard has been implemented and achieved the intended objectives. The Board is currently reviewing the comments received 
from respondents and plans to release a Feedback Statement in the first quarter of 2016 with the results of their findings. 

Project — Employment Benefits

The Board has approved a new project on Employee Benefits. This project was identified as the top priority in PSAB’s 2014 Project Priority 
Survey. The project will review existing Sections PS 3250, Retirement Benefits, and PS 3255, Post-employment Benefits, Compensated 
Absences and Termination Benefits. Since these Sections were originally issued many years ago, new types of pension plans have been 
introduced and there have been changes in the related accounting concepts. The first part of this project will involve looking at issues such 
as deferral of experience gains and losses, discount rate, shared risk plans, multi-employer defined benefit plans and vested sick leave 
benefits. Other improvements to existing guidance will also be considered. The next stage will involve determining how to account for new 
types of pension plans. The Board plans to issue a new comprehensive Handbook Section on employment benefits that will replace the 
two existing Sections. Currently the Board is putting together a task force of volunteers to undertake this project and it is expected that an 
Invitation to Comment will be issued in the second quarter of 2016.

Public Sector Accounting Discussion Group

In 2013, the Board established the Public Sector Accounting Discussion Group (PSADG) as a regular public forum at which issues arising on 
the application of the PSA Handbook can be discussed. The group meets three times a year and consists of members that include preparers, 
auditors and users of government and government organization financial reports. The group’s purpose is to assist the Board regarding issues 
arising on the application of the PSA Handbook and to gather information to advise the Board on priorities and possible agenda items for its 
consideration. While the group does not issue any authoritative guidance or interpretations, as only the Board has the ability to do so, the 
group’s meeting summaries provide meaningful insights on the application of the standards that can be used as a resource. These meeting 
summaries are available on the FRAS Canada website or by clicking here. During 2015, the PSADG discussed topics including:

•	 Presentation of budget information; 

•	 Shared risk retirement benefit arrangements; 

•	 Statements of recommended practice; 

•	 Standard setting in the public interests; 

•	 The term net debt; 

•	 Remediation obligations; 

•	 Gas tax agreements; 

•	 Contractual obligations; 

•	 Acquisition and development of software associated with cloud computing; and 

•	 Vacation paid in the year of retirement. 

We would encourage public sector entities to keep up to date on topics discussed at these meetings.

Conclusion

As we head closer to the end of the year, now is the time to discuss with your BDO advisor how the changes made to the PSA Handbook and 
the proposed changes affect your organization.

http://www.frascanada.ca/standards-for-public-sector-entities/public-sector-accounting-discussion-group/search-past-meeting-topics/item78831.aspx


DRAFT
The Corporation of the
Township of Puslinch
Financial Statements
For the year ended December 31, 2015



DRAFT

The Corporation of the Township of Puslinch
Financial Statements
For the year ended December 31, 2015

Contents

The Corporation of the Township of Puslinch

Independent Auditor's Report 2 - 3

Statement of Financial Position 4

Statement of Operations and Accumulated Surplus 5

Statement of Changes in Net Financial Assets 6

Statement of Cash Flows 7

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 8 - 10

Notes to Financial Statements 11 - 22

Schedule of Deferred Revenue 23



DRAFT

Independent Auditor's Report

To the Members of Council, Inhabitants and Ratepayers
of the Corporation of the Township of Puslinch

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the Corporation of the Township of
Puslinch, which comprise the statement of financial position as at December 31, 2015, and the
statements of operations and accumulated surplus, changes in net financial assets and cash
flows for the year then ended, and a summary of significant accounting policies and other
explanatory information.

Management's Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial
statements in accordance with Canadian public sector accounting standards, and for such
internal control as management determines is necessary to enable the preparation of financial
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor's Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit. We
conducted our audit in accordance with Canadian generally accepted auditing standards. Those
standards require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to
obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free from material
misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and
disclosures in the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's
judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor
considers internal control relevant to the municipality's preparation and fair presentation of the
financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the
municipality's internal control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of
accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by management,
as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our audit opinion.

2



DRAFT

Opinion

In our opinion, the financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial
position of the Corporation of the Township of Puslinch as at December 31, 2015 and the results
of its operations, changes in net financial assets and cash flows for the year then ended in
accordance with Canadian public sector accounting standards.

Chartered Professional Accountants, Licensed Public Accountants

April 20, 2016
Orangeville, Ontario

3



DRAFT

The Corporation of the Township of Puslinch
Statement of Financial Position

December 31 2015 2014

Assets and Liabilities

Financial assets
Cash (Note 1) $ 3,473,845 $ 4,861,071
Temporary investments (Note 2) 2,008,537 -
Taxes receivable 732,326 1,153,412
Trade and other receivable 249,493 218,850

6,464,201 6,233,333

Liabilities
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities 380,131 414,640
Grading deposits 134,908 202,908
Security deposits 1,617,417 1,533,534
Deferred revenue (Page 23) 632,280 721,938
Long-term liabilities (Note 5) 345,000 451,000

3,109,736 3,324,020

Net financial assets 3,354,465 2,909,313

Non-financial assets
Prepaid expenses - 102,079
Tangible capital assets (Note 3) 19,399,686 19,902,735

19,399,686 20,004,814

Accumulated surplus (Note 7) $22,754,151 $ 22,914,127

The accompanying summary of significant accounting policies and notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
4



DRAFT

The Corporation of the Township of Puslinch
Statement of Operations and Accumulated Surplus

For the year ended December 31 2015 2015 2014
Budget Actual Actual

(Note 10)

Revenue
Taxation $ 3,418,832 $ 3,479,014 $ 3,471,397
Fees and  user charges 291,185 441,023 479,370
Grants (Note 11) 496,645 525,840 554,295
Other income (Note 9) 788,069 884,436 846,748
Obligatory reserve fund revenue recognized 533,762 491,743 796,139

5,528,493 5,822,056 6,147,949

Expenses
General government 1,105,734 1,077,196 1,232,166
Protection services 1,091,009 1,172,240 1,045,767
Transportation services 2,796,459 2,684,581 2,871,231
Recreation and cultural services 585,925 524,870 561,278
Planning and development 492,254 523,145 438,036

6,071,381 5,982,032 6,148,478

Annual surplus (deficit) (Note 10) (542,888) (159,976) (529)

Accumulated surplus, beginning of year 22,914,127 22,914,127 22,914,656

Accumulated surplus, end of year $ 22,371,239 $22,754,151 $ 22,914,127

The accompanying summary of significant accounting policies and notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
5



DRAFT

The Corporation of the Township of Puslinch
Statement of Changes in Net Financial Assets

For the year ended December 31 2015 2015 2014
Budget Actual Actual

(Note 10)

Annual surplus (deficit) (Page 5) $ (542,888) $ (159,976) $ (529)

Acquisition of tangible capital assets (1,246,040) (1,176,243) (1,033,187)
Amortization of tangible capital assets 1,642,478 1,642,480 1,742,149
Loss (gain) on sale of tangible capital assets - (18,878) 125,261
Proceeds on disposal of tangible capital assets - 55,690 1,854

396,438 503,049 836,077

Change in prepaid expenses - 102,079 (102,079)

Increase (decrease) in net financial assets (146,450) 445,152 733,469

Net financial assets, beginning of the year 2,909,313 2,909,313 2,175,844

Net financial assets, end of the year $ 2,762,863 $ 3,354,465 $ 2,909,313

The accompanying summary of significant accounting policies and notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
6



DRAFT

The Corporation of the Township of Puslinch
Statement of Cash Flows

For the year ended December 31 2015 2014

Cash provided by (used in)

Operating activities
Annual surplus (deficit) $ (159,976) $ (529)
Items not involving cash

Amortization of tangible capital assets 1,642,480 1,742,149
Deferred revenue recognized (532,963) (817,770)
Loss (gain) on sale of capital assets (18,878) 125,261

930,663 1,049,111

Changes in non-cash working capital balances
Taxes receivable 421,086 47,356
Trade and other receivable (30,643) 220,353
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities (34,509) (269,815)
Grading deposits (68,000) (55,202)
Security deposits 83,883 48,040
Prepaid expenses   102,079 (102,079)
Deferred revenue received 443,305 379,699

917,201 268,352

1,847,864 1,317,463

Capital transactions
Cash used to acquire tangible capital assets (1,176,243) (1,033,187)
Proceeds on sale of tangible capital assets 55,690 1,854

(1,120,553) (1,031,333)

Financing activities
Repayment of long-term liabilities (106,000) (101,000)

Net change in cash and cash equivalents 621,311 185,130

Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of year 4,861,071 4,675,941

Cash and cash equivalents, end of year $ 5,482,382 $ 4,861,071

Cash and cash equivalents are comprised of:
Cash $ 3,473,845 $ 4,861,071
Temporary investments 2,008,537 -

$ 5,482,382 $ 4,861,071

The accompanying summary of significant accounting policies and notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
7



DRAFT

The Corporation of the Township of Puslinch
Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

December 31, 2015

Management Responsibility The financial statements of the Corporation of the Township
of Puslinch are the representations of management. They
have been prepared in accordance with Canadian generally
accepted accounting principles established by the Public
Sector Accounting Board of the Canadian Institute of
Chartered Professional Accountants as prescribed by the
Ministry of Municipal Affairs and Housing. 

Basis of Accounting Revenues and expenses are reported on the accrual basis of
accounting. The accrual basis of accounting recognizes
revenues as they become available and measurable; expenses
are recognized as they are incurred and measurable as a
result of receipt of goods or services and the creation of a
legal obligation to pay.

Use of Estimates The preparation of financial statements in accordance with
Canadian public sector accounting standards requires
management to make estimates that affect the reported
amounts of assets and liabilities at the date of the financial
statements, and the reported amounts of revenues and
expenses during the reporting period. By their nature, these
estimates are subject to measurement uncertainty and actual
results could differ from management's best estimates as
additional information becomes available in the future.

Post-Employment Benefits The contributions to the Ontario Municipal Employees
Retirement System ('OMERS"), a multi-employer defined
benefit plan are expensed when contributions are due.

8



DRAFT

DRAFT

The Corporation of the Township of Puslinch
Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

December 31, 2015

Taxation and Related Revenue Property tax billings are prepared by the Township based on
assessment rolls issued by the Municipal Property Assessment
Corporation.  Tax rates are established annually by Township
Council, incorporating amounts to be raised for local services.
A normal part of the assessment process is the issue of
supplementary assessment rolls, which provide updated
information with respect to changes in property assessment.
Once a supplementary assessment roll is received, the
Township determines the taxes applicable and renders
supplementary tax billings.  Taxation revenue are recognized
as revenue when the amounts are levied on the municipality's
ratepayers.

Assessments and the related property taxes are subject to
appeal.  Taxes are recorded at estimated amounts when they
meet the definition of an asset, have been authorized and the
taxable event occurs. For property taxes, the taxable event is
the period for which the tax is levied. Taxes receivable are
recognized net of allowance for anticipated uncollectable
amounts.

The Township is entitled to collect interest and penalties on
overdue taxes.  These revenues are recorded in the period
the interest and penalties are levied.

Revenue Recognition Fees and user charges are recognized when the related
service is provided.

Other income is recorded upon sale of goods or provision
of service when collection is reasonably assured.

Investment income earned on surplus funds (other than
obligatory reserve funds) are reported as revenue in the
period earned. Investment income earned on obligatory
reserve funds is recorded directly to each fund balance.

Government transfers are recognized in the financial
statements as revenues in the period in which events giving
rise to the transfer occur providing the transfers are
authorized, and eligibility criteria have been met and
reasonable estimates of the amounts can be made.

9



DRAFT

DRAFT

The Corporation of the Township of Puslinch
Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

December 31, 2015

Deferred Revenue Revenue restricted by legislation, regulation or agreement
and not available for general municipal purposes is reported
as deferred revenue on the statement of financial position.
The revenue is reported on the statement of operations in
the year in which it is used for the specified purpose.

Cash and Cash Equivalents Cash and cash equivalents include all cash balances and short
term highly liquid investments that are readily convertible
into cash.

County and School Board The municipality collects taxation revenue on behalf of the
school boards and the County of Wellington. The taxation,
other revenues, expenses, assets and liabilities with respect
to the operations of the school boards and the County of
Wellington are not reflected in these financial statements.

Non-financial Assets Tangible capital and other non-financial assets are accounted
for as assets by the municipality because they can be used to
provide services in future periods. These assets do not
normally provide resources to discharge the liabilities of the
municipality unless they are sold.

Tangible Capital Assets Tangible capital assets are recorded at cost less accumulated
amortization. Costs include all amounts that are directly
attributable to acquisition, construction, development or
betterment of the asset. Amortization is provided over the
estimated useful life of the assets, using the straight-line
method. The useful life of the assets is based on estimates
made by Council. The following rates are used:

Buildings 40 years
Furniture and equipment 5 to 20 years
Roads 10 to 50 years
Bridges and structures 20 to 50 years
Vehicles 7 to 15 years

Tangible capital assets received as contributions are recorded
at fair value at the date of receipt and also are recorded as
revenue.

Intangible Assets Intangible assets, art and historic treasures, and items
inherited by right of the Crown, such as Crown lands, forests,
water, and mineral resources, are not recognized in these
financial statements.

10



DRAFT

 The Corporation of the Township of Puslinch
 Notes to Financial Statements

December 31, 2015

1. Cash
2015 2014

Unrestricted $ 2,400,660 $ 4,152,603
Restricted 1,073,185 708,468

$ 3,473,845 $ 4,861,071

The municipality has internally and externally restricted funds that are segregated and will
be used only for specific purposes.

The municipality's bank accounts are all held at one financial institution.

2. Temporary Investments
2015 2014

Term Deposit $ 2,008,537 $ -

The term deposit earns interest at a rate of 1% and matures on February 29, 2016.

11



DRAFT

 The Corporation of the Township of Puslinch
 Notes to Financial Statements

December 31, 2015

3. Tangible Capital Assets 

2015

Land Buildings
Furniture and

equipment Roads
Bridges and

structures Vehicles
Assets under
construction Total

Cost, beginning of
year $ 1,229,008 $ 4,354,478 $ 1,032,209 $ 37,686,531 $ 6,638,555 $ 2,984,305 $ 77,872 $ 54,002,958
Additions - 22,462 67,687 635,009 155,904 273,242 21,939 1,176,243
Disposals - - - (966,971) (26,187) (187,687) - (1,180,845)
Transferred from
assets under
construction - - 13,608 - - - (13,608) -

Cost, end of year 1,229,008 4,376,940 1,113,504 37,354,569 6,768,272 3,069,860 86,203 53,998,356
Accumulated
amortization,
beginning of year - 1,233,649 870,848 28,135,965 2,182,438 1,677,323 - 34,100,223
Amortization - 106,979 44,130 1,137,610 154,389 199,372 - 1,642,480
Disposals - - - (938,481) (26,187) (179,365) - (1,144,033)
Accumulated
amortization, end of
year - 1,340,628 914,978 28,335,094 2,310,640 1,697,330 - 34,598,670
Net carrying
amount, end of year $ 1,229,008 $ 3,036,312 $ 198,526 $ 9,019,475 $ 4,457,632 $ 1,372,530 $ 86,203 $ 19,399,686

12



DRAFT

 The Corporation of the Township of Puslinch
 Notes to Financial Statements

December 31, 2015

3. Tangible Capital Assets - (continued)

2014

Land Buildings

Furniture
and

equipment Roads
Bridges and

structures Vehicles
Assets under
construction Total

Cost, beginning of
year $ 1,229,008 $ 4,190,584 $ 988,229 $ 38,569,769 $ 6,361,239 $ 3,036,217 $ 42,906 $ 54,417,952
Additions - 163,894 52,328 456,594 312,513 - 47,858 1,033,187
Disposals - - (10,000) (1,339,832) (46,437) (51,912) - (1,448,181)
Transferred from
assets under
construction - - 1,652 - 11,240 - (12,892) -

Cost, end of year 1,229,008 4,354,478 1,032,209 37,686,531 6,638,555 2,984,305 77,872 54,002,958
Accumulated
amortization,
beginning of year - 1,128,113 841,565 28,128,722 2,049,868 1,530,872 - 33,679,140
Amortization - 105,536 39,283 1,248,287 150,680 198,363 - 1,742,149
Disposals - - (10,000) (1,241,044) (18,110) (51,912) - (1,321,066)
Accumulated
amortization, end of
year - 1,233,649 870,848 28,135,965 2,182,438 1,677,323 - 34,100,223
Net carrying
amount, end of year $ 1,229,008 $ 3,120,829 $ 161,361 $ 9,550,566 $ 4,456,117 $ 1,306,982 $ 77,872 $ 19,902,735

13



DRAFT

 The Corporation of the Township of Puslinch
 Notes to Financial Statements

December 31, 2015

4. Bank Indebtedness

The Township has undrawn credit of $1,500,000 for operating. Interest is calculated at the
bank's prime rate.  This facility is secured by a current borrowing by-law.

5. Long-term Liabilities

The balance of long-term liabilities reported on the statement of financial position is made
up of the following:

2015 2014

Debenture payable, County of Wellington,
variable interest at 3.85% to 5.00%,
repayable in variable annual instalments
(2015 - $106,000, 2014 - $101,000), due July
2018. $ 345,000 $ 451,000

Principal payments for the next 3 fiscal years are as follows:

2016 $ 110,000
2017 116,000
2018 119,000
                                  

$ 345,000

14



DRAFT

 The Corporation of the Township of Puslinch
 Notes to Financial Statements

December 31, 2015

6. Pension Agreements

The municipality makes contributions to OMERS, which is a multi-employer plan, on behalf
of 17 members of its staff. This plan is a defined benefit plan which specifies the amount of
the retirement to be received by the employees based on the length of service and rates of
pay. Employees and employers contribute jointly to the plan. The employer amount
contributed to OMERS for 2015 by the Township of Puslinch was $116,823 (2014 - $108,890).
The contribution rate for 2015 was 9.0% to 15.9% depending on age and income level (2014 -
9.0% to 15.9%).

OMERS is a multi-employer plan, therefore any pension plan surpluses or deficits are a joint
responsibility of Ontario municipal organizations and their employees. As a result, the
municipality does not recognize any share of the OMERS pension surplus or deficit. The last
available report for the OMERS plan was December 31, 2014.  At that time the plan reported
a $7.1 billion actuarial deficit (2013 - $8.6 billion actuarial deficit), based on actuarial
liabilities of $76.9 billion (2013 - $73.0 billion) and actuarial assets of $69.8 billion (2013 -
$64.4 billion). Ongoing adequacy of the current contribution rates will need to be
monitored as the severe decline in the financial markets may lead to increased future
funding requirements.  

7. Accumulated Surplus

Accumulated surplus consists of individual fund surplus and reserves as follows:

2015 2014
Invested in tangible capital assets

Tangible capital assets at cost less amortization $19,399,686 $ 19,902,735
Capital assets financed by long-term liabilities
and to be funded in future years (345,000) (451,000)

Total invested in capital assets 19,054,686 19,451,735

General surplus (Note 10) 239,670 626,661
Barber's Beach street lighting area 829 (1,554)
Cambridge fire area 1,087 4,153

19,296,272 20,080,995

Reserves and reserve funds (Note 8) 3,457,879 2,833,132

Accumulated surplus $22,754,151 $ 22,914,127

15



DRAFT

 The Corporation of the Township of Puslinch
 Notes to Financial Statements

December 31, 2015

8. Reserves and Reserve Funds Set Aside for Specific Purpose by Council

2015 2014
Reserves

Working funds $ 158,901 $ 350,133
Contingencies 109,089 99,293
Current purposes 505,695 396,751
Capital purposes 2,684,194 1,986,955

Reserves and reserve funds 
set aside for specific purpose by Council $ 3,457,879 $ 2,833,132

9. Other Income
2015 2015 2014

Budget Actual Actual

Penalties and interest on taxation $ 188,356 $ 176,907 $ 194,660
Investment income 56,239 72,822 72,199
Licenses, permits and rents 304,150 374,646 335,617
Donations - 8,221 -
Provincial aggregates levy 214,164 215,182 213,037
Other 25,160 36,658 31,235

$ 788,069 $ 884,436 $ 846,748

16



DRAFT

 The Corporation of the Township of Puslinch
 Notes to Financial Statements

December 31, 2015

10. Budgets

The budget adopted by Council was not prepared on a basis consistent with that used to
report actual results (Public Sector Accounting Standards). The budget was prepared on a
modified accrual basis while Public Sector Accounting Standards now require a full accrual
basis. The following is a reconciliation of the budget approved by Council.

For comparative purposes, budget amounts reported on the Statement of Operations and
Accumulated Surplus have been adjusted for amortization and loss on sale of tangible
capital assets.

2015 2015 2014
Budget Actual Actual

Annual surplus (deficit) (Page 5) $ (542,888) $ (159,976) $ (529)

Amortization of tangible capital assets 1,642,478 1,642,480 1,742,149
Change in other surpluses - 683 251

1,099,590 1,483,187 1,741,871
Net transfers (to) from reserves 252,450 (624,747) (761,163)
Tangible capital assets acquisitions,  
 disposals and write-down (1,246,040) (1,139,431) (906,072)
Debt principal repayments (106,000) (106,000) (101,000)

- (386,991) (26,364)
Prior year general surplus - 626,661 653,025

General surplus (Note 7) $ - $ 239,670 $ 626,661

17



DRAFT

 The Corporation of the Township of Puslinch
 Notes to Financial Statements

December 31, 2015

11. Grants

2015 2015 2014
Budget Actual Actual

Operating
Province of Ontario

Ontario Municipal Partnership
 Fund (OMPF) $ 404,600 $ 404,600 $ 402,700
Conditional - General government 57,878 64,662 16,250

- Transportation - - 44,923
- Protection 15,000 15,000 27,740

Unconditional - Recreation and cultural 5,167 4,729 5,167
- Protection 1,500 1,849 30

484,145 490,840 496,810

Government of Canada
Conditional - Recreation and cultural - - 22,485

Other Municipalities
Unconditional - General government 12,500 35,000 35,000

Total grants $ 496,645 $ 525,840 $ 554,295

18



DRAFT

 The Corporation of the Township of Puslinch
 Notes to Financial Statements

December 31, 2015

12. Operations of School Boards and the County of Wellington

During the year, the following taxation revenue was raised and remitted to the school
boards and the County of Wellington:

2015 2014

School boards $ 6,121,852 $ 6,004,788
County of Wellington 12,844,209 12,235,382

$18,966,061 $ 18,240,170

13. Commitments

The Township has entered into an agreement for fire services totaling $123,500 annually
from January 1, 2016 to December 31, 2016.

The Township has entered into an agreement for information technology services totaling
$25,440 annually from January 1, 2016 to December 31, 2016.

The Township has committed to spend approximately $31,753 on capital projects in 2016
and beyond on various protection and transportation capital projects.

14. Contingent Liabilities

The Township has been served with various claims as a result of accidents and other
incidents. The Township is not aware of any possible settlements in excess of its liability
insurance coverage. The outcomes of these claims are not determinable at this time. Should
any liability be determined and not covered by insurance, it will be recognized in the period
when determined.

19



DRAFT

 The Corporation of the Township of Puslinch
 Notes to Financial Statements

December 31, 2015

15. Segmented Information

The Township of Puslinch is a diversified municipal government institution that provides a
wide range of services to its citizens such as recreational and cultural services, planning and
development, fire, and transportation services. Distinguishable functional segments have
been separately disclosed in the segmented information. The nature of the segments and
the activities they encompass are as follows:

General Government

This item relates to the general operations of the municipality itself and cannot be directly
attributed to a specific segment.

Protection to Persons and Property

Protection is comprised of fire protection, and bylaw enforcement. The fire department is
responsible for providing fire suppression services, fire prevention programs, training and
education. The by-law enforcement department works to ensure that citizens and their
property are protected by ensuring the Township's bylaws are being adhered to. This
department also includes services related to source water protection and other transfers
made to the Grand River Conservation Authority, Conservation Halton and Hamilton
Conservation Authority.

Transportation
 
Transportation is responsible for providing the municipality with road maintenance, winter
control services, street light maintenance, parking lots and equipment maintenance.  

Recreational and Cultural Services

This service area provides public services that contribute to the provision of recreation and
leisure services and the maintenance of parks and open space. 

Planning and Development

This department provides a number of services including Township planning, maintenance
and enforcement of building and construction codes and review of all property development
plans through its application process.  

The accounting policies of the segments are the same as those described in the summary of
significant accounting policies. Amounts that are directly attributable to a number of
segments have been allocated on a reasonable basis as follows:

Taxation and payments-in-lieu Allocated to  those  segments  that are
funded by these amounts based on the net
surplus for the year

OMPF Grants Allocated to segments based on the net surplus
for the year

Provincial Aggregate Levy Allocated to segments based on the net surplus
for the year

20



DRAFT

 The Corporation of the Township of Puslinch
 Notes to Financial Statements

December 31, 2015

15. Segmented Information (continued)

For the year ended December 31
General

Government Protection Services
Transportation

Services
Recreational and
Cultural Services

Planning and
Development

2015
Total

Revenue
Taxation  $ 556,642 $ 765,382 $ 1,809,088 $ 313,111 $ - $ 3,479,014
Fees and user charges 7,705 193,301 - 132,842 107,175 441,023
Specific grants 99,662 16,849 - 4,729 - 121,240
OMPF grant 64,736 89,012 210,392 36,414 - 404,600
Provincial aggregate levy 34,429 47,340 111,895 19,366 - 215,182
Other revenue 262,370 38,624 4,949 7,665 355,646 669,254
Obligatory reserve fund revenue recognized 38,110 1,642 444,512 7,479 - 491,743

1,063,654 1,152,150 2,580,836 521,606 462,821 5,822,056

Expenses
Salaries and benefits 738,868 431,551 540,683 216,940 310,725 2,238,767
Interest on debt 19,405 - - - - 19,405
Materials and supplies 134,008 347,830 550,137 150,389 66,190 1,248,554
Contracted services 127,414 135,045 193,494 51,370 146,230 653,553
Other transfers 32,625 155,514 - 1,000 - 189,139
Rents and financial expenses 2,087 586 - 4,674 - 7,347
Amortization 22,789 101,714 1,417,479 100,497 - 1,642,479
Loss (gain) on sale of tangible capital assets - - (17,213) - - (17,213)

1,077,196 1,172,240 2,684,580 524,870 523,145 5,982,031

Annual  surplus (deficit) $ (13,542) $ (20,090) $ (103,744) $ (3,264) $ (60,324) $ (159,975)

21



DRAFT

 The Corporation of the Township of Puslinch
 Notes to Financial Statements

December 31, 2015

15. Segmented Information (continued)

For the year ended December 31
General

Government
Protection

Services
Transportation

Services
Recreational and
Cultural Services

Planning and
Development

2014
Total

Revenue
Taxation  $ 728,993 $ 659,565 $ 1,839,841 $ 242,998 $ - $ 3,471,397
Fees and user charges 6,779 226,625 - 134,050 111,916 479,370
Specific grants 26,250 27,770 44,923 27,652 25,000 151,595
OMPF grant 84,567 76,513 213,431 28,189 - 402,700
Provincial aggregate levy 44,738 40,477 112,909 14,913 - 213,037
Other revenue 288,281 29,499 3,895 5,338 306,698 633,711
Obligatory reserve fund revenue recognized 54,561 (25,904) 676,932 90,550 - 796,139

1,234,169 1,034,545 2,891,931 543,690 443,614 6,147,949

Expenses
Salaries and benefits 695,427 420,735 509,227 221,493 272,643 2,119,525
Interest on debt 24,219 - - - - 24,219
Materials and supplies 181,627 303,371 538,886 178,330 62,130 1,264,344
Contracted services 273,184 77,317 175,721 54,081 103,263 683,566
Other transfers 32,925 144,364 - 1,000 - 178,289
Rents and financial expenses 2,289 652 - 8,184 - 11,125
Amortization 22,495 99,328 1,522,136 98,190 - 1,742,149
Loss on sale of tangible capital assets - - 125,261 - - 125,261

1,232,166 1,045,767 2,871,231 561,278 438,036 6,148,478

Annual  surplus (deficit) $ 2,003 $ (11,222) $ 20,700 $ (17,588) $ 5,578 $ (529)

22



DRAFT

The Corporation of the Township of Puslinch
Schedule of Deferred Revenue

For the year ended December 31, 2015

Contributions Investment Revenue
Opening Received Income Recognized Ending

Obligatory Reserve Funds
Development charges $ 304,632 $ 158,950 $ 3,346 $ (230,558) $ 236,370
Federal gas tax 176,131 203,528 2,797 (253,706) 128,750
Recreational land 199,955 21,665 2,182 (7,479) 216,323

680,718 384,143 8,325 (491,743) 581,443
Other

Recreation    20,199 42,781 - (20,199) 42,781
Building permits 21,021 8,056 - (21,021) 8,056

$ 721,938 $ 434,980 $ 8,325 $ (532,963) $ 632,280

23









 

PLANNING REPORT  
for the TOWNSHIP OF PUSLINCH 

Prepared by the County of Wellington Planning and Development Department 

DATE: March 22, 2016 
TO: Kelly Patzer, Development Coordinator 

Township of Puslinch 
FROM:  Sarah Wilhelm, Senior Planner 

County of Wellington 
SUBJECT: AMENDING BY-LAW D14/COL (Coles Label It!) 

Zoning By-law Amendment 
6691 Ellis Road (Part Lot 8, Concession 2), Puslinch 

ATTACHMENTS: Draft Amending By-law 
 
SUMMARY 
This zoning by-law amendment is consistent with the Provincial Policy Statement and generally 
conforms to the Provincial Growth Plan and the County Official Plan. There were no public or agency 
concerns raised during the circulation or at the public meeting. An amending by-law is enclosed for 
Council’s consideration, which includes landscape buffering adjacent to Ellis Chapel. We support the 
rezoning of the subject lands. 
 
Thank you for your request to prepare a Draft Amending By-law for the above-noted application. In our 
comments of January 15, 2016 we provided a policy review for Council’s consideration. This report 
offers our planning opinion and draft amending by-law. 
 
PROPOSAL  
There are two parts to this rezoning request: 
 
1. to allow a small scale commercial use (service trade, as defined); and 
2. to ensure that any future home occupations would comply with existing By-law requirements. 
 
This label making business was first established as a home occupation on the property. The business has 
evolved to a point where it will be relocated to the east side of the property as a stand-alone small scale 
commercial use. 
 
CONSULTATION 
A public meeting was held on March 3, 2016. No members of the public spoke or expressed interest in 
the proposed zoning by-law amendment. There were no agency concerns. The Township of Puslinch 
Heritage Committee requested an increased landscape buffer between the property and Ellis Chapel.  
 
DRAFT AMENDING BY-LAW 
We have attached a draft amending by-law for Council’s review which would rezone a portion of the 
property from Agricultural (A) to Agricultural Site Specific (A-63) and Agricultural Site Specific (A-64). The 
A-63 Zone would permit a small scale commercial use on a one acre portion of the property adjacent to 
Ellis Chapel. We would consider the label making business a “Service Trade”. To provide some flexibility 
in the future we have proposed a scoped Service Trade definition to allow for the following uses: a 
printer’s shop, a plumber’s shop, a painter’s shop, a carpenter’s shop, an electrician’s shop, a welding 



 
PLANNING REPORT for the TOWNSHIP OF PUSLINCH   
Amending By-law, D14/COL (Coles Label It!) 
March 22, 2016  Page 2 

shop, a machine shop, or a monument engraving shop, which may include accessory administrative 
offices. In our opinion, these uses would generate similar traffic and limited off-site impacts. An 
agricultural use would also be permitted. The following service trade uses are not included in the 
definition for the property: a tinsmith’s shop, a merchandise service shop, a battery storage and 
recharging shop, a well driller’s establishment, a furrier’s shop, a bakery, a dairy, a catering 
establishment, or an egg grading station.  
 
We have also included regulations to ensure appropriate sight lines and buffering of the adjacent Ellis 
Chapel: 
 

• Increased front yard depth of 60 m (197 ft) 
• Planting strip of 3.0 m (9.8 ft) adjacent to Ellis Chapel  
• Side yard setbacks of at least 3.0 m (9.8 ft), depending on building height 
• Prohibition of outdoor storage 

 
The scale of the business is controlled by a: 
 

• A 1 acre zoned area 
• Maximum building size of 465 m2 (5,005 ft2) 
• Maximum building height 8.0 m (26.2 ft) 

 
The A-64 Zone deals with the balance of the property, which is where the business was first established 
as a home occupation. In 2006, the applicant obtained minor variance approval (A4/06) to increase the 
allowable number of employees for a home occupation who do not reside in the dwelling from one to 
three. Upon relocation of the business, the applicant would like to maintain the accessory building for 
personal use. The A-64 regulation will ensure that that any future home occupations would comply with 
the existing by-law requirement limiting the number of non-occupant employees to one, 
notwithstanding the previous minor variance approval. 
 
PLANNING OPINION 
In our opinion, the proposed rezoning of the subject land to permit a small scale service trade is 
consistent with the Provincial Policy Statement and generally conforms to the Provincial Growth Plan 
and the County Official Plan. Accordingly, we recommend the approval of the amending by-law. 
 
NEXT STEPS 
If the amending by-law is approved by Council, notification should be provided in accordance with the 
Planning Act. 
 
Respectfully submitted 
County of Wellington Planning and Development Department  
 
 
 
 
_____________________________ 
Sarah Wilhelm, BES, MCIP, RPP 
Senior Planner  



 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 

ZONING BY-LAW AMENDMENT 
 
 
 

for 
 

Brad Coles (Label It!) 
Part of Lot 8, Concession 2  

6691 Ellis Road, Township of Puslinch 
 

Application D14/COL 
 
 

 
 
 

Prepared by the 
 

County of Wellington 
Planning and Development Department 

 
 
 
 

March 22, 2016 
 

 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

 

 



 
THE CORPORATION OF THE TOWNSHIP OF PUSLINCH 

 
 

BY-LAW NUMBER ____________              
 

A BY-LAW TO AMEND BY-LAW NUMBER 19/85, AS AMENDED, 
BEING THE ZONING BY-LAW OF THE TOWNSHIP OF PUSLINCH 

 
 
 WHEREAS, the Council of the Corporation of the Township of Puslinch deem it 
appropriate and in the public interest to amend By-Law Number 19/85, pursuant to Section 34 of 
the Planning Act, R.S.O. 1990 as amended; 
 

NOW THEREFORE THE COUNCIL OF THE CORPORATION OF THE TOWNSHIP OF 
PUSLINCH ENACTS AS FOLLOWS: 
 
 
1. That Schedule 'A' of Zoning By-law 19/85 is hereby amended by rezoning Part of Lot 8, 

Concession 2, from Agricultural (A) Zone to the AGRICULTURAL SITE-SPECIFIC (A-63 
ZONE and (A-64) ZONE, as shown on Schedule "A" of this By-law. 
 

2. That subsection 5(4) SPECIAL PROVISIONS is amended by adding the following new 
exceptions: 

 
"(kkk) A-63 (COLES – Label It!) 
 Part Lot 8, Concession 2 
 

Notwithstanding the uses permitted under Section 5(2) and any provisions of this 
By-law to the contrary, for the land zoned A-63 on Schedule ‘A’ hereto, the 
following special provisions shall apply: 
 
(i) Uses Permitted Restricted To 

(a) A service trade restricted to a printer’s shop, a plumber’s shop, a 
painter’s shop, a carpenter’s shop, an electrician’s shop, a welding 
shop, a machine shop, or a monument engraving shop, which may 
include accessory administrative offices; 
 

(b) An agricultural use. 
 

(ii) Zone Requirements 
The applicable zone provisions of this By-law shall apply to the subject 
land together with the following special provisions: 
 
(a) LOT AREA (MINIMUM) 0.4 ha 
   
(b) FRONT YARD DEPTH (MINIMUM) 60 m 
   
(c) SIDE YARD (MINIMUM) EACH SIDE Equal to one-half the 

building height, but 
not less than 3.0 m 

   
(d) GROSS FLOOR AREA (MAXIMUM) 465 m2 



   
(e) BUILDING HEIGHT (MAXIMUM) 8.0 m 
   
(f) LANDSCAPED OPEN SPACE (MINIMUM) 25% 
   
(g) PLANTING STRIP – SIDE YARD 

(MINIMUM) 
3.0 m 

   
(h) OUTDOOR STORAGE Outdoor storage shall 

not be permitted 
 

All other applicable regulations of the Zoning By-law shall be maintained.  
 
"(lll) A-64 (Home Occupation) 
 Part Lot 8, Concession 2 
 

Notwithstanding any provisions of this By-law to the contrary or previous minor 
variance approval, for the land zoned A-64 on Schedule ‘A’, at no time shall any 
home occupation employ more than one person who does not reside in the 
dwelling to which such home occupation is accessory. The land zoned A-64 is 
subject to all applicable regulations of Zoning By-law 19/85, as amended.”  

 
3. This By-law shall become effective from the date of passage by Council and come into force 

in accordance with the requirements of the Planning Act, R.S.O. 1990, as amended. 
 
 
 
READ A FIRST AND SECOND TIME THIS            DAY OF                                                , 2016. 
 
 
 
                                                                                                                                                                                                         
MAYOR      CLERK 
 
 
 
 
READ A THIRD TIME AND PASSED THIS           DAY OF                                                 , 2016. 
 
 
 
                                                                                                                                                                                                         
MAYOR      CLERK 
 
 



THE CORPORATION OF THE TOWNSHIP OF PUSLINCH 
 

BY-LAW NO. ____________                
 

S C H E D U L E   " A "  
 

 
 
 

 
This is Schedule "A" to By-law No._____________ 
  
Passed this ____ day of _______________, 2016. 
 

 
 

________________________________________ 
MAYOR 
 
 
________________________________________ 
CLERK 
 



THE CORPORATION OF THE TOWNSHIP OF PUSLINCH 
 
 

EXPLANATION OF BY-LAW NO.    __________              
 
 
By-law Number                    amends the Township of Puslinch Zoning By-law 19/85 by rezoning 
Part of Lot 8, Concession 2 from Agricultural (A) to Agricultural Site-Specific (A-63) and (A-64). 
The purpose of the zone change is to allow for a small scale commercial label-making business 
on a portion of the property. The business has operated as a home occupation out of an 
accessory structure west of the dwelling on the property. In 2006, the applicant obtained minor 
variance approval (A4/06) to increase the allowable number of employees for a home 
occupation who do not reside in the dwelling from one to three. Upon relocation of the business, 
the applicant would like to maintain the accessory building for personal use. 
 
There are two parts to this rezoning request: 
 
1. to allow a small scale commercial use (service trade, as defined); and 
2. to ensure that any future home occupations would comply with existing By-law requirements 

that no more than one employee who does not reside in the dwelling to which the home 
occupation is accessory notwithstanding minor variance approval for an increase to three. 

 
Regulations related to the label-making business ensure appropriate sight lines and buffering of 
the adjacent Ellis Chapel (front yard setback, landscaping, planting strip, side yards and no 
outdoor storage). The scale of the business is controlled through a 1.0 acre zoning area, a 
maximum building size and height. 
 

 











Planning & Development Advisory Committee Meeting 
March 8, 2016 

7:00 pm 
Council Chambers, Aberfoyle 

MINUTES 

MEMBERS PRESENT: 
John Sepulis, Chair 
Councillor Ken Roth 
Deep Basi 
Dennis O’Connor 

MEMBERS ABSENT: 
Dianne Paron 

OTHERS IN ATTENDANCE: 
Kelly Patzer – Development Coordinator 
Sarah Wilhelm – County of Wellington 
Karen Landry – CAO/Clerk 
Marny Mason 
Liz Nimmo 
Wayne Hodges 
Joan Hodges 
Anna Vera 
Javier Vera 
Dave Hazelwood 
Isabelle Hazelwood 
Jay Wilson 

Councillor Susan Fielding 
Rev. Marcie Gibson 
Jeff Buisman 
Gerie McCauley 
Mike McCauley 
Sally Prior 
Dave Prior 
Doug Smith 
Jessica Goyda 
Stephen Goyda 
John Lawrence 
Joel Sypkes

1. - 5. COMMITTEE OF ADJUSTMENT
• See March 8, 2016 Committee of Adjustment Minutes

DEVELOPMENT APPLICATIONS 

6. OPENING REMARKS
• The Chair advised the gallery that the following portion of the Committee meeting will

be reviewing and commenting on planning development applications.

7. DISCLOSUE OF PECUNIARY INTEREST
• None

8. APPROVAL OF MINUTES
• Moved by Deep Basi, Seconded by Ken Roth
• That the minutes of the Tuesday February 9, 2016 Planning & Development

Advisory Committee Meeting are hereby adopted as amended.
CARRIED 

9. APPLICATIONS FOR SITE PLAN URBAN DESIGN REVIEW
• None

10. ZONING BY-LAW AMENDMENTS
• None

11. LAND DIVISION

11(a) Severance Application B13/16(D10/ONT) – 1543446 Ontario Ltd., Part Lot 16, 
Concession 3, municipally known as 6898 Wellington Road 34. 



 2 

 Proposed severance is 145 m frontage x 105 m = 1.5 hectares, vacant land for 
proposed rural residential use. 

  
 Retained parcel is 37.8 hectares with360 m frontage on Wellington Road 34 and 760 

m frontage on Wellington Rd 35, existing and proposed agricultural use with existing 
storage barn. 

. 
 
 Moved by Ken Roth, Seconded by Dennis O’Connor that the following comments be 

forwarded to the County of Wellington Land Division Committee: 

• No comments 
CARRIED 

 
12. OTHER MATTERS 
12a) 2016 Zoning By-law Housekeeping 

Moved by Dennis O’Connor, Seconded by Deep Basi that the following comments 
be received by staff for Zoning By-law 19/85 2016 Housekeeping Amendment: 

Table of Proposed Changes #8: 

• Define “Contractor’s Yard” 
• Outline screening requirements and outdoor storage for Contractor’s Yard 

 Table of Proposed Changes #17 (edits): 

• (g) Lot Area (maximum) (minimum) 
• (g) Accessory Building - … in or as a detached building or structure 

Table of Proposed Changes #18: 

• Second dwelling  - remove “traditionally constructed” 
• Investigate accessory building size permissions 
• Bring clarity to encroachments to natural Environment Zone       

CARRIED 

13. CLOSED MEETING  
• No matters 

14. FUTURE MEETINGS  

• Next Regular Meeting Tuesday April 12, 2016 @ 7:00 p.m. 

15. ADJOURNMENT 
Moved by Ken Roth and Seconded by Deep Basi, 

• That the Planning & Development Advisory Committee adjourns at 9:24 p.m. 
CARRIED 



Planning & Development Advisory Committee Meeting 
Committee of Adjustment 

March 8, 2016 
7:00 pm 

Council Chambers, Aberfoyle 
 

  
 

MINUTES 
 
MEMBERS PRESENT: 
John Sepulis, Chair 
Councillor Ken Roth 
Dennis O’Connor 
Deep Basi 
 
MEMBERS ABSENT: 
Dianne Paron 
OTHER STAFF IN ATTENDANCE:  
Kelly Patzer – Development Coordinator 
Sarah Wilhelm – County of Wellington 
Karen Landry – CAO/Clerk 
Marny Mason 
Liz Nimmo 
Wayne Hodges 
Joan Hodges 
Anna Vera 
Javier Vera 
Dave Hazelwood 
Isabelle Hazelwood 
Jay Wilson 

Councillor Susan Fielding 
Rev. Marcie Gibson 
Jeff Buisman 
Gerie McCauley 
Mike McCauley 
Sally Prior 
Dave Prior 
Doug Smith 
Jessica Goyda 
Stephen Goyda 
John Lawrence 
Joel Sypkes 

 
 
1.  OPENING REMARKS 

• The meeting was called to order at 7:00 pm. The Chair welcomed the gallery to the 
Committee of Adjustment meeting and informed the gallery Township Staff would 
present the application, then the applicant would have the opportunity to speak to 
present the purpose and details of the application and provide any further relevant 
information. Following this the public can obtain clarification, ask questions and 
express their views on the proposal. The members of the Committee can then obtain 
clarification, ask questions and express their views on the proposal. All application 
decisions are subject to a 20 day appeal period. 

2. DISCLOSURE OF PECUNIARY INTEREST 
• None 

3. APPROVAL OF MINUTES 
Moved by Ken Roth and Seconded by Deep Basi 
That the minutes of the Committee of Adjustment meeting held Tuesday February 
9th, 2016 be adopted. 

 CARRIED 
 

4. COMMITTEE OF ADJUSTMENT – Applications for Minor Variance 
4(a) Minor Variance Application D13/VER – Anna & Javier Vera – Property described 

as Part Lot 18, Concession 4, 6964 Concession 4, Township of Puslinch. 
 

Requesting relief from provisions of Zoning By-Law #19/85, as amended, to allow a 
28 metre frontage instead of 121.9 metres on the retained parcel of Wellington 
County severance application B117/15 

 



 2 

• Kelly Patzer stated that the application for reduced frontage is a Township 
condition of County of Wellington severance application B117/15. The application 
was circulated to properties 60 metres from the subject property and required 
staff and agencies. No objections were received from circulated agencies or the 
public.  

• Jeff Buisman of VanHarten Surveying, agent, presented the application and 
noted that the application for the proposed frontage applies to the retained 
parcel. The frontage on the severed parcel is 76 metres. The proposed 
severance was created this way to protect environmental features on the 
property and to have the property entrances close to each other for safe access 
onto Concession 4 Road.  

• There were no questions or comments from the Public or Committee. 
Moved by Dennis O’Connor and Seconded by Deep Basi 
In the matter of Section 45 (1) of the Planning Act, as amended, and Comprehensive 

 Zoning By-law 19/85 as amended, and an application for a minor variance 
 requesting permission to allow: 

 
1. A 28 metre minimum lot frontage; whereas, Section 5.3(b) of the by-law, 

Agricultural Zone, Zone Requirements, requires a minimum lot frontage of 121.9 
metres for properties 4.0 hectares or greater in area. 
 

The request is hereby Approved. 
CARRIED 

4(b) Minor Variance Application D13/WIL – Jay Alec Stirling Wilson – Property 
described as Part Lot 6, Concession 5, 4783 Wellington Road 32, Township of 
Puslinch. 

 
Requesting relief from provisions of Zoning By-Law #19/85, as amended, to allow for 
the proposed 26 m frontage on the retained parcel of Wellington County severance 
application B115/15. 

• Kelly Patzer stated that the application for reduced frontage is a Township 
condition of County of Wellington severance application B115/15. The 
application was circulated to properties 60 metres from the subject property and 
required staff and agencies. No objections were received from circulated 
agencies or the public. 

• Jeff Buisman of VanHarten Surveying, agent, presented the application and 
noted that the reduced frontage applies to the retained parcel and noted that the 
parcel is 4.2 hectares in size. If it was under 4 hectares that the lot frontage 
minimum requirement would be 24.3 metres. 

• There were no questions or comments from the Public or Committee. 
Moved by Ken Roth and Seconded by Deep Basi 
In the matter of Section 45 (1) of the Planning Act, as amended, and Comprehensive 

 Zoning By-law 19/85 as amended, and an application for a minor variance 
 requesting permission to allow: 

 
1. A 26 metre minimum lot frontage; whereas, Section 5.3(b) of the by-law, 

Agricultural Zone, Zone Requirements, requires a minimum lot frontage of 
121.9 metres for properties 4.0 hectares or greater in area. 

 
The request is hereby Approved. 

CARRIED 

4(c) Minor Variance Application D13/SLO – Sloot Construction Ltd. – Property 
described as Part Lot 7, Concession 9, 599 Arkell Road, Township of Puslinch. 

 
Requesting relief from provisions of Zoning By-Law #19/85, as amended, to allow 5 
parking spaces instead of the 11 that are required for a mixed use building of a 
professional office, retail/variety store and restaurant. 



 3 

 
• Kelly Pater detailed that the minor variance is a result of a proposed 

intensification of the property at 599 Arkell Road. A restaurant and market store 
use is newly proposed on the main floor of the building and the second floor of 
the building is currently an office for a construction company. The site is able to 
accommodate 5 parking spaces for a total of the uses proposed. 

• Kelly Patzer stated that the application was circulated to staff and neighbouring 
properties within 60 metres of the subject property. There were no objections 
from commenting staff and County Engineering noted that the Highway Traffic 
Act restricts parking on the right-of-way to permit snow removal from November 
through to March.  

• Kelly Patzer noted the County Parking by-law states that “no person shall park a 
vehicle upon a highway between the hours of 2 and 6am of any day during the 
months of November through to March. 

• Kelly Patzer indicated that the Township received 6 letters of opposition for the 
parking variance that stated the reduction of parking is not minor, noted concerns 
such as an increase in traffic, the potential increase in accidents from on-street 
parking, possible parking of customers on Boreham Drive and the increased use 
of the existing on-street parking. 

• Kelly Patzer indicated that approximately 15 letters of support were received for 
the variance, noting that a reduction of parking is minor and believe the 
restaurant is a positive addition to the community as a local gathering 
establishment, and the community has been able to accommodate parking for 
special events at the church and historic uses of the subject property such as a 
General Store and Post Office.  

• Kelly Patzer noted that a breakdown of required parking was provided by the 
agent and it showed that the barrier free parking space was added as a required 
parking space, the by-law includes a barrier free parking space within the total 
calculation of required parking spaces. Therefore, 10 spaces are required for the 
total of the proposed uses, not 11. 

• Jeff Buisman of VanHarten Surveying, agent, presented the application. A 
restaurant, The Dirty Apron, is proposed in the existing building and the property 
can accommodate only 5 parking spaces. The building has existed a long time on 
the property and has been a cornerstone of the community, at one time being the 
Arkell Post Office.  

• Jeff Buisman outlined the proposed business is a variety store type use of  a grab 
and go market with prepared foods, ready-made meals, soups, stocks, sauces, 
pizza, and fresh meats where people in the community can pick up items to go. 
There is also an open kitchen/bistro area that will offer cooking classes and an 
18-20 seat dining area that will be operating as a restaurant approximately three 
nights a week.  

• Jeff Buisman presented the following parking calculation based on the combined 
uses for Section 3.16(c) of the Zoning By-law:     
(iii)  A business office: 135m2 /40m2 =  4 spaces 
(xii) A retail/variety store =    1 space 
(xiii) A restaurant - greater of: 
  20 seats in dining room/4 =  5 spaces 
  26m2 per first floor plan/10 =  3 spaces 
3.16(m) Barrier free parking =   1 space 
Total =       11 spaces  

• Jeff Buisman clarified that he misinterpreted the by-law, and a barrier free parking 
space is included in the total required parking, not in addition, therefore 10 spaces 
are required for the proposed use.  

• Jeff Buisman noted that there are 2 employees in the existing office on the second 
floor, but if the application is approved and the restaurant/market store is able to 
open, the Sloot Construction office is moving to a new location and there would no 
longer be any traffic to the site relating to the construction business. The upstairs 
would be used as storage and an office space for the restaurant and would not be 
a separate business. 



 4 

• Jeff Buisman indicted that there are approximately 18-20 public parking spaces in 
Arkell and that old downtowns with commercial buildings generally do not have 
adequate parking.  

• Jeff Buisman stated that a building permit for a redesigned septic has been 
approved and a Site Plan application is in process that proposes a new board 
fence along the property lines between the neighbouring residential properties. 
There will be a landscape buffer approximately 2.5 metres in width between the 
parking area and fence on the property line, greater than the required 1.5 metre 
landscape buffer in the C1 Zone. 

• Jeff Buisman noted that the existing deck is being removed on the other side of 
the building. 

• Jeff Buisman noted that historically the Arkell school house held concerts and 
parking was accommodated in the village and the Church uses the parking area 
at 599 Arkell on Sundays. 

• Jeff Buisman concluded that the application meets the 4 tests of a minor variance. 
The reduction in parking is minor and will have a limited impact on the existing 
parking in Arkell, the community has a history of sharing public parking spaces 
and the office use and related traffic will be decreased; the intent and purpose of 
the zoning by-law is maintained as the proposed uses are permitted; the intent 
and purpose of the official plan is maintained  as local commercial uses are 
permitted in the Hamlet areas and the variance is desirable as the building has 
been a meeting place in Arkell for many years and the use will contribute to the 
character and community spirit of Arkell. 

• Marny Mason of 13 Boreham Drive, questioned how the letters of support relate 
specifically to parking and how the letters are weighted and believes that a 50% 
reduction in parking is not minor. 

• John Sepulis indicated that the application is considered based on staff and public 
comments and the variance request. 

• Sarah Wilhelm noted there is not a specific formula for variances and is often 
assessed if a request is minor in terms of impact. There is also case law that can 
have an impact on a decision. 

• Marny Mason inquired if the parking calculation includes staff parking for the 
business and noted on-street parking is used for 3 or 4 other businesses who are 
concerned in a reduction of available parking for their customers.  

• Marny Mason noted that some of the public parking spaces along the church are 
used by residents for mail pick-up and the remainder of the parking is often full. 
An additional business using the parking is a concern as it reduces the available 
parking for the community and is a safety concern for neighbours.  

• David Prior of 835 Watson Rd. S. stated the business has an on-going application 
for a liquor licence and has filed a complaint to the Township regarding the 
landscaped area between 599 Arkell and his property and noted the landscape 
buffer should be 4.5 metres and that would further reduce the parking area.  

• Sarah Wilhelm confirmed that a 4.5 metre landscaping buffer is not required. 

• David Prior stated that he has not been advised by the Township that the 
Township does not agree with his interpretation of the Township’s Zoning by-law 
requirements particularly as they related to the minimum landscaping buffer 
requirements. 

• David Prior indicated that there are 4 home operated businesses within the vicinity 
who use the public parking and does not believe that best efforts have been made 
to achieve more parking on the property.  

• David Prior remarked there have been discrepancies between the square footage 
of the restaurant between the liquor licence and parking calculation for the site 
plan.  

• David Prior stated that the application for reduced parking is not minor and the 
impact will be negative on the community of Arkell. 



 5 

• Jeff Buisman clarified that the restaurant is 18-20 seats and cooking classes will 
be held in the space when it is not a restaurant.  

• John Sepulis indicated that the committee considers the application that is 
submitted and the report and comments submitted by staff to ensure the 
application is accurate.  

• Gerie McCauley of 834 Watson Rd S. stated that when there were concerts at the 
old school house residents were putting rocks on the boulevard to prevent cars 
parking on their property. Arkell is a small community and Council and the 
Committee should ensure that the owners of 599 Arkell abide by the regulations of 
the by-law. 

• Sally Prior of 835 Watson Rd S. noted there was not a representative here to 
speak on behalf of the church. The church requires 15 parking spaces and there 
are several events and meetings held at the church and the public parking is full 
during these times and she has no option but to walk around cars.  

• Sally Prior noted there are only 4 public spaces available along Arkell Road to 
maintain required distances from driveways and stop signs, and three of the 
parking spaces along Arkell Road beside the church are not full spaces due to the 
mail boxes impeding the spaces and one space is reserved for the church 
reverend.  

• Doug Smith of 570 Arkell Road, stated when there are cars parked in front of the 
super mail boxes on Arkell road Canada Post does not deliver the mail, and this 
happens approximately three times a week. The church and the existing 
businesses in the area already use all of the available parking. 

• Doug Smith asked about the septic and garbage storage on the property. 

• Doug Smith also referred to another construction business on Watson Road. 

• John Sepulis stated the variance requested is for parking and the details of the 
site plan are addressed under a separate application process.  

• Jessica Goyda of 859 Watson Rd S (co-owner of the proposed restaurant 
business) stated a septic permit has been issued for the property. She knows that 
there are concerns regarding the business which she does not take lightly and 
has made concessions to alleviate the concerns of the neighbours. Plans for 
exterior seating have been removed and a fence with landscaping is proposed 
adjacent to 835 Watson Road S. that will block light and give privacy.  

• Jessica Goyda stated there is enough parking in the area for a variance reduction 
of 5 required spaces, and the impact of 5 additional cars is minimal and will not 
add congestion. There will be 18 seats in the restaurant and she does not 
anticipate customers would be parking on Boreham Drive.  

• Jessica Goyda remarked that there are a lot of people who want to see this 
establishment come to life and not permitting the relief would result in the 
business not being able to open. There are sentimental ties to the building as her 
grandfather operated the store there years ago. She’s hoping the establishment 
will bring to life a small town community feel and be a positive community impact. 

• Michael McCauley of 834 Watson Rd. S. requested to see all public letters written 
regarding the application. 

• Kelly Patzer stated that they would be posted with the agenda on the Township 
website. 

• David Prior stated that no one was notified that the office use was leaving the 
property.  

• Jessica Goyda stated that the office has just recently made arrangements to rent 
new space. 

• Jessica Goyda indicated that due to negative feedback received regarding the 
proposed name of the restaurant that they are renaming the restaurant to “Union 
Market Square”. 



 6 

• Jeff Buisman indicated that the septic design required less staff to meet 
standards. 

• Sally Prior stated that delivery trucks have been an issue on the property because 
they block sidewalks. 

• Marny Mason stated that Council had previously noted that the development 
would not move forward if it did not meet all the by-laws yet the parking does not 
meet the by-law requirement. 

• Kelly Patzer explained that a minor variance is an application that a property 
owner can make to vary the requirements of the by-law to bring a property into 
conformity with the by-law.  

• Dave Hazelwood of 593 Arkell Road, asked what happens if the Sloot office does 
not move out. 

• John Sepulis stated that the office use is proposed within the minor variance. 

• There were no further questions or comments from the public. 

• Dennis O’Connor inquired if there are other septic designs that could be done to 
make more room on the property for parking. 

• Jeff Buisman noted the septic design is already a small system. 

• Karen Landry clarified that the septic permit had been issued meeting Ontario 
Building Code requirements. 

• Ken Roth requested clarification if the office leaves would the parking requirement 
be reduced. 

• Jeff Buisman noted the office use requires 4 parking spaces. 

• Deep Basi asked if the property is wheelchair accessible and if there is a 
designated accessible parking space. 

• Jeff Buisman stated that there will be an accessible parking space and the 
business will be accessible.  

• John Sepulis asked if the parking could be extended to the west where there is a 
flat area. 

• Jeff Buisman confirmed that the parking could not be extended because part of 
the septic system is in that area and it cannot be parked on top of. 

Moved by Ken Roth and Seconded by Deep Basi 
In the matter of Section 45 (1) of the Planning Act, as amended, and Comprehensive 

 Zoning By-law 19/85 as amended, and an application for a minor variance 
 requesting permission to allow: 

 
Five (5) parking spaces for a mixed use building of a professional office, retail/variety 
store and restaurant, whereas Section 3.16(c), General Provisions, Parking 
Regulations, requires a total of ten (10) spaces for the mixed use building 

 
The request is hereby Approved with the Following Conditions: 
 
1. The minor variance to permit 5 parking spaces is conditional upon the applicant 

obtaining Site Plan Approval. 
CARRIED 

  
5. ADJOURNMENT 

Moved by Dennis O’Connor and Seconded by Deep Basi 
The Committee of Adjustment meeting adjourned at 8:34 p.m. 

CARRIED 
 














	C03-  April 20, 2016 -  Council Agenda
	2016 03 31 - Council Minutes- Quint Truck Purchase
	2016 04 06- Council Minutes
	Notice Public Meeting - 2016 Housekeeping Amendment Zoning By-law 19-85
	Report - County of Wellington Planning Department - 2016 Housekeeping Amendment to Zoning B7-Law
	Communications
	Item 6.1(a)
	Item 6.2(a)
	Item 6.3(a)
	Item 6.3(b)
	Item 6.4(a)
	Item 6.5(a)

	Intergovernmental Items
	IG#1
	IG#2
	IG#3
	IG#4
	IG#5
	IG#6
	IG#7
	IG#8
	IG#9
	IG#10
	IG#11

	REPORTS
	Report - Puslinch Fire and Rescue Services - March 2016
	BDO Final Report to Council 2015 - April 20, 2016
	Draft Financial Statements 2015
	Report - Wellington Source Water Protection - Kyle Davis- Source Protection Contract Position dated April 1 2016
	Report - County of Wellington Planning Department - Amending By-Law D14-COL - Coles Label It
	Chief Building Official Report - March 2016

	COMMITTEE MINUTES
	Planning and Advisory Committee Minutes - March 8 2016
	Committee of Adjustment - March 8 2016

	By-laws
	14(a)
	14(b)
	14(c)
	15




